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PRESIDENT'S MESSAGE

it is my pleasure to present the 215t Annual Repart of SME Bank for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The warld has changed after global crisis of the COVID-19 pandemic. The soclal, political, economic, and
financial structure of the whole world has been massively disturbed. Country-wide lockdowns take
effect across the world including Pakistan, businesses and other companias are coming under increasing
financial strain. In order to ensure that liquidity issues do not translate into solvency issues, from time
to time SBP has taken different measures to mitigate the mpact of COVID-1% on economic growth by
improving access to credit and easing certain regulatory controfs in the financial sector. This situation
alfects borrower's repayment capacity that will cause substantial increase in impairment of advances
even though SBP has taken different measures to reduce the impact by deferment in payment of
principle up to one year and also by providing facdility of restructuring/rescheduling of performing
advances,

The spread of COVID-19 World over posing severe challenges to economic development, and it might
affect to China-Pakistan Economy Corridor (CPEC) as well.

SME Bank has continued to work with a limited equity base, bank is operating with paid-up capital of Rs
2.39 billion since 2007 and has applied to State Bank to grant exemption to meet the requirement of
minimum paid up capital of Bs. 10 billion,

With a network of 13 branches the Bank has very limited outreach. Permission to open new branches is
not granted by State Bank due to low equity and pending privatization.

Even under constrained ciroumstances there is no letup in the Bank's primary operations. In these
circumstances we have been able to increase deposit by Rs.646 million and stood at Rs_8,248.27 million
as on December 31,2022 as compared to last year Rs.7,602.26 million. The bank made fresh
dishursement of Rs.476 million during the year under review as compared to Rs.262 million in the last

year,

A5 business & economic activities remained depressed, repayment commitments were dishonored by
few borrawers, however due to the management’s focus and strenuous efforts by the feld staff, there
Is & decrease in non-performing portfolio and stood at Rs.438 milion at the year-end December 31,
2022 as compared to Rs.485 million last year.

It is the Management’s vision to build an image of SME Bank as the bank which is a friend of the Small &
Medium Enterprises; a bank totally trusted with their deposits, ability and resources 1o cater to their
business needs. Customers’ will see SME Bank as the bedrock integral to their business growth and
sustainability and as a national institution ably playing its crucial role in the country's economic growth
& development.

On behalf of the management, | would like to take this opportunity to thank the State Bank of Pakistan,
the Ministry of Finance and the Board of Directors for their continued support and guidance,

President



DIRECTORS' REPORT EHOLDERS

We are pleased to present the 21% annual report of SME Bank Limited with the audited
accounts and auditors' report thereon for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Economic Qutlook

Inflationary pressure is expected to calm down gradually due to flood-led damages which
have disrupted the supply of essential items. Rising prices of onlons and wheat both are the
key factors responsible for affecting the general price level. International commeodity prices
are showing a downward trend on a YoY basis and its impact will ultimately be transmitted
into domestic prices with some lags after adjusting the currency devaluation. While the
government kept the administered prices at their current level to stabilize the overall prices
but post floods persistent shortfall of essential crops is preventing inflation to settle down.

SBP is also enacting a contractionary monetary policy to contain inflationary pressure.
Howeyer, a larger portion of volatility in the current price level is explained by supply-side
factors. Further, the recent palitical and economic uncertainties bath are causing inflationary
expectations upward. The CPl inflation on YoY basis for January 2023, is forecasted in the
range of 24-26 percent.

Inflation

For the month of Dec'22, headline inflation clocked-in at 24.5% compared to 12.3% in Dec’21
and 23.8% in Nov'22, respectively. With this, average inflation for THFY23 clocks-in at 25.02%
compared to 9.81% in THFY22. The YaY uptick in CPI during Dec’22 was led by Food (35.5%
YoY), Transport (41.2% YoY), Housing (6.9% YoY), Restaurants (27.4% YoY), Alcoholic
Beverages & Tobacco (36.2% YoY), House Hold Equipment (29.2% YoY), Miscellaneous (25.8%
YoY), Recreation & Culture {38.5% YoY) and Clothing & Footwear (17.1% Ya¥).

Monetary Policy Outlook

It is expected, headline inflation to remain elevated in 2HFY23 before slowing down with the
onset of new fiscal year. It is expected that pressure mainly emanating from any further
energy tariff hikes, weaker currency against the greenback and surge in food prices. Showing
concern for the same, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) in its monetary policy meeting held on
Moy 25th, 2022 hiked the benchmark policy rate by 100bps to 16%. To recall, the last hike of
125hps was done in Jul'22. The current stance was aimed at containing the impact of elevated
domestic inflationary pressure, so as to embark on a path of sustainable recovery. Moreover,
SBP also revised its inflation expectations for FY23 to 21-23% from 18-20% previously.

Foreign Investment

FDI reached % 460.9 million during Jul- Dec FY2023 (% 1114.7 million last year) decreasing by
58.7 percent. FDI received from China $ 131.8 million (28.6 percent), Switzerland § 89.8
million {19.5 percent), U.A.E § 80.8 million {17.5 percent of total FDI}, and Japan % 74.3 million
{16.1 percent).The power sector attracted the highest FOI of % 237.1 million {57.4 percent of
total FOI), Financial Business % 176.0 million (18.2 percent), and 0il & Gas Explorations § 89.2
million {19.3 percent).
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Foreign Private Partfolio Investment has registered a net outflow of § 12.9 million during Jul-
Dec FY2023. Forelgn Public Portfolio Investment recorded a net outflow of $ 1019.7 million,
on account of Sukuk repayment in December 2022. The total foreign portfolio investment
recorded an outflow of § 1032.6 million during Jul-Dec FY2023 as against an outflow of 405.5
million last. Total foreign investment during Jul-Dec F¥Y2023 recorded an outflow of 8571.7
millien as against an inflow of % 709.3 million last year.

Worker's Remittances

In Jul-Dec FY2023, workers' remittances recorded at $ 14.1 billion (% 15.8 billion last year),
decreased by 11.1 percent. MoM basis, remittances decreased by 3.2 percent in December
2022 (3 2.0 billion) as compared to Movember ($ 2.1 billion). Share of remittances (Jul-Dec
FY2023) from Saudi Arabia remained 24.7 percent (% 3470.4 million), U.A.E 18.5 percent (%
2601.9 million), U.K 14.1 percent {$ 1977.2 million], USA 10.8 percent ($ 1526.2 million), other
GCC countries 11.6 percent ($1632.2 million), EU 11.0 percent (% 1544.3 million), Malaysia 0.4
percent (5 62.3 million), and Other Countries 8.9 percent.

Foreign Exchange Reserves

Pakistan's total liquid foreign exchange reserves increased to $ 9.45 billion on January 24,
2022, with the SBP's reserves now standing at § 3.678 billion. Commercial banks’ reserves
remained at £ 5.77 billion.

Commercial Banking

Paving the way through changing dynamics: The past year turned out to be a bull case in
terms of profitability for the banking sector in Pakistan. However, this performance has not
been a smooth ride with rising inflation, demand disruptions, high international commaodity
prices, geopolitical conditions and other macroeconomic indicators hampering the growth of
nat only banks but the economy in general.

Final Remarks

Pakistan is currently confronted with the challenges like high inflation, low growth, and low
levels of official foreign exchange reserves, Further MoM increases in consumer prices may be
countered by a further mean reverting international commodity prices and some exchange
rate stability due to decreased pace of depreciation. The overall money supply growth
remains compatible with a return to low and stable inflation. But the outlook of M2 is broadly
dependent on fiscal accounts which are under immense pressure on account of heavy interest
payvments and rehabilitation spending.

Nonetheless, the first five months of CFY have ended with some developments; containing
fiscal deficit and surplus in primary balance due to effective fiscal management. Fiscal
consolidation is key to saving official reserves and exchange rate stability. This may
tempaorarily be costly in terms of growth prospects in the short term, but long-run prosperty
and growth can only be achieved by augmenting the country’s long-term equilibrium growth
path by expanding production capacities and productivity. This is a shared responsibility of
both the private and public sectars.
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Operational Highlights

The Bank is operating with paid up capital of Rs 2.39 billion since 2007. SME Bank has applied
to State Bank to grant exemption to meet the requirement of minimum paid up capital of Rs
10 billion, Shareholders in their meeting on October 7, 2009, advised to recapitalize the bank
by increasing its paid-up capital and management has approached Ministry of Finance for the
same. The Board noted that in view of impending privatization of the bank, 58P's constraints
on business expansion, and very narmow equity base of less than Rs 2 billion, it is a challenge
to operate the bank on self sustainable basis.

In view of restrictions placed by State Bank of Pakistan there was no change in branch
network during the year 2022 and the Bank continued to operate with 13 commercial banking
branches and five recovery offices,

Interest Rate Scenario

S5BP policy rate at the beginning of the year 2022 was 9.75 percent. At the end of the year
2022 policy rate reached at 16.00 percent with increase of 6.25 percent.

Credit Rating

Bank was assigned a long term credit rating of CCC and short term rating of B {Single B) by
PACRA credit rating agency on November 22, 2018, The credit rating company has exprassed
that the bank's operational performance is significantly under pressure because of delay In
capital injection by GoP. Thus continuation of the bank's operations going forward is
dependent on either of the two factors: (i) fresh capital injection by GoP or (i) development on
the privatization front, as growth in the bank's operations is restricted due to these two
factors although the management is taking measures to improve business functions, howewver
operational sustainability is dependent upon equity injection by the primary sponsor.

Operational Results

In the backdrop of narrow equity base and shortage of funds, management has been able to
meet day to day liquidity needs. Despite enormous pressure of liquidity crunch, SME loans and
advances portfolio stood at Rs 1,398 million, During the year under review income from SME
lending operations decreased by an amount of Rs 482 million. The cost of funds increased by
an amount of Rs 511 million due to increase in average rate of borrowings from 7.21% to
12.96% and average rate of deposits from 5.93% to 9.98% in 2022.

The deposits of the bank has been increased by Rs. 224 million and stood at Rs 8,472.49
million as onDecember 31, 2022 as compared to last year Rs. B,248.27 million as on
December 31, 2021.

During the year 2022, the bank reversed net provision of Bs 41.38 million against non-
performing loans as against net provision reversal of Rs 18.33 million in 2021. Loans and
advances on account of the bank’s lending operation were #s 1,398 million in 2022 compared
to Rs 1,880 million in 2021.

The macro economic factors such as increase in inflation and interest rate seriously dampened

the business activities in the country and slow down the growth rate to a great extent, which
in turn affected the repayment capacity and behaviour of the bank’s borrowers but despite
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these hindrances the management of the bank made persistent efforts to reduce the non-
performing loans of the bank. Non-performing loans of the bank on December 31, 2022 were
Rs 180 million whereas on December 31, 2021 it was Rs 438 million.

The Bank has investment of Rs 215.46 million in SME Leasing Limited (SMEL) which is carried
in these financial statements at Rs 80.75 million and has outstanding running finance
exposure of Rs. 139.18 million as at December 31, 2022. The company during the year has
mainly focused on intermal cash generation through recoveries from its portfolio and
reinvesting these to build-in new quality business. The company has managed to write frash
net “leases and working capital” worth Rs, 14.98 million. Total recoveries aggregated to Rs.
80.622 million (including Rs. 52.72 million from non-performing portfolio). The percentage of
default in new business written over last 3 years has been negligible, Market value of its share
ranged between Rs 1.6 to Rs 3.52 per share over last 52 weeks. The Bank periodically reviews
its investment in 5MEL for evidence of any impairment. The recoverable amount of
investment in SMEL is determined with reference to its value in use. The Bank uses present
value techniques and financial projections of SMEL to calculate its value in use.

The bank has booked loss before tax of Rs 1.398.23 million during the year 2022 as compared
to loss before tax of Rs 1,051.45 million in 2027, and Net loss of Rs 1,249.88 million as
compared to Net loss of Rs 942.42 million in 2021. The reason for incurring losses were due to
pending privatization, restructuring, limited outreach, inadequate level of equity and
economic conditions. In future, we expect to decrease the losses by enhancing revenues and

reducing volume of our non-performing loans.

With regard to the exposure granted ta SME Leasing Limited, SME Bank applied for exemption
from single related party exposure limit to the 5BP. The 5BP granted relaxation to SME Bank
Ltd in single related party exposure limit under Prudential Regulation R-1 regarding the
financing of As 150 million to SME Leasing Ltd for the period up to December 31, 20719 or
completion of restructuring / privatization, whichever is earlier.

Paid-up Capital

The Bank is operating with paid up capital of Rs 2.39 billion since 2007, In line with the SBP
guidelines banks are required to raise paid up capital to minimum capital requirements of Rs
10 billign. However, SME Bank has applied to State Bank to grant exemption to meet the
requirement of minimum paid up capital of Bs 10 hillion.

Financial Statements

Financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards as applicable in Pakistan, SBP Prudential Regulations and Companies Act 2017, The
disclosures in notes to financial statements correspond to the requirement of law and
guidelines issued by the regulatory authorities.

Internal Control aver financial reporting

The board is fully committed to ensure the existence of an effective system of internal control
in the bank and continuously reviews and evaluates the adeguacy and integrity of those
systems. However, the board recognizes that such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risks identified to acceptable levels.
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Therefore, the systems implementad can provide only reasonable but not absolute assurance
against the occurrence of any material misstatement and loss.

Whilst the Board has overall responsibility for the bank’s system of intermal controls, it has
delegated the implementation of these internal control systems to the management in order
to identify risk and take action to mitigate the risk. These internal control systems are subject
to the board's regular review with a purpose for appraising the effectiveness of these systems
im the hank.

Deposits

Despite all the impediments, the deposits of the bank has been increased by Rs. 224 million
and stood at Rs 8.472.49 million as on December 31, 2022.

Disbursements

Liguidity constraints notwithstanding, the bank was able to achieve fresh disbursement of Rs
272 million during the year as compared to Rs 476 million in the previous year while the
number of clients served during the year was 50 as compared to 129 in the previous year and
total number of outstanding borrowers wera 585 at the year end.

Auditor's Adverse Opinion in Audit Report:
iOur contentions about the reasons of adverse opinion reported by the auditors are as under:

1. The statement of the Auditor (SMEL continues to operate on a net loss basis) is contrary
to facts as SMEL closed its books for the year 2022 with profit after tax of Rs. 1.230
millions.

2. Deferred tax asset of Rs. 1,165.061 million reported in balance sheet of year 2022,
which recognized an asset over the period of last six years, cannot take as a reason to
state that the financial statements of the Bank do not present fairly the state of the
Bank's affairs as at December 311, 2022. Whereas, bases of deferred tax determined
amounts are verifiable through its supporting record. However, If the auditors are of
the view that basis of the deferred tax no more exist due to decision taken by The
Federal Cabinet on March 17, 2023 the auditors may suggest us future treatment of
deferred tax in financial statement for the year 2023, the suggestion will be adopted
with consultation of our tax advisors.

3. As per decision of transfer of the portfolio from SME Bank ta National Bank of Pakistan
the portfolic was supposed to be shifted from Financial Statements / Books of SME
Bank to Financial Statements / Books of National Bank of Pakistan; but the portfolio
could not reflected in the financial statements / books of National Bank of Pakistan,
who refused to report the portfolio in its financial statements. Resultantly, in best
national interest, the portfolio, which is fully provisioned, continues to appear in the
books of the SME Bank, While the position of the portfolio was highlighted in past by
the Auditors in their reports, the reporting of the portfolio in the financial statements
of the bank had never been declared as not presenting the state of the bank's affairs
fairly as is being done in Audit repart for the year 2022 without given any justification
thereof.
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4. The auditors narrated the same observation / evidences with up-dated figures under
the Head of “Material Uncertainties relating to Going Concern”, which they had been
stated in their report for the year 2021 under the head; but in report for the year 2022,
conclusion was changed “conditions indicate the existence of o materiol uncertainty
thot may cast significant doubt on the Bonk's gbility to continue a5 0 Qoing concer.
Qur opinian is not medified in respect of this matter™ to “conditions indicate that going
concern assumption of the Bank is no more appropriote. Our opirmion is modified in
respect af this matter” without stating any reasons thereof. Their contention, in the
absence of assessment of realizable value of assets and settlement amount of
liabilities, we are unable to assess the impact of required adjustments on these
financial statements, which is considered unjustified particularly in scenarioc where
more tham 93% shares of the bank are owned by Government of Pakistan and
management has made disclosure of a Material Uncertainty in the Financial
Statements.

We are of the view that in light of above foregoing the reasons stated by the auditors do not
carry enough grounds to develop adverse opinion that the financial statements of the Bank do
not present fairly the state of the Bank's affairs as at December 31, 2022 and of the loss and
the comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards.

Leasing Business

SME Leasing Limited, a subsidiary of the Bank incorporated in 2002, has posted a profit after
tax of Rs. 1.230 million as compared to loss of Rs. 13.399 million from last year, Recoveries of
MPLs and reversal of provision contributed a lot to convert the company from loss to profit for
the year 2022. Net equity of the company is Rs 7.224 million (2021: Rs 6.54 million). PACRA
has assigned the long-term rating of 8- (2021: B-} and a short term rating of A4 (2021: A4d),

SME Leasing disbursed Rs 14.983 million (2021: Rs. 17.704 million) to 4 clients in 2022 (2021:
6). Dutstanding portfolio (lease and working capital) stands at Rs 322.543 million with 220
clients.

Customer Complaint Management

The management believes in customer’s satisfaction through better service delivery from all
aspects and thus endeavour to promote aculture that values customer's relationship and
experience. A dedicated Vigilance Department is functioning to ensure timely resolution of
complaints in order to foster customer confidence. It also coordinates with other functions of
the bank for improvement in 50Ps and mechanism for facilitating the customers at SME bank.

A comprehensive Complaint Resolution Mechanism and Complaint Resolution Policy have
been designed and are in place. For effective management and handling of complaints, a
complaint management system (CMS) has been developed and implemented in the bank. The
Complaint Resolution Mechanism designed in light of SBP Consumer Grievances Handling
Mechanism (CGHM) provides more than one channels to the customers for lodging their
complaints to the bank. It outlines detail guidelines for receipt. recording, probing, resolving
and responding to the complainants. Most of the complaints have been properly responded
and ultimately resolved timely.

Page & of 14



Sixteen (16) complaints were received during the year 2022 which have been resolved and no
complaint was pending as on 31-12-2022. Moreover, a customer satisfaction survey
conducted every year in the bank in compliance of Conduct Assessment Framework also
reflects the encouraging response from the banks' customers.”

Training & HR Development

For enhancement of skill/knowledge base of human capital available for specialised tasks,
necessary training and skill development activities were carried out for the staff on the basis
of training need assessment,

Information Technology and Security

Critical IT infrastructure has been upgraded/and is in the process of up gradation to maintain
highest level of quality of service and digital trust for all stakeholders while ensuring optimal
use of resources. Multiple pilot projects have been initiated, as per service delivery
requirements of the Bank, to facilitate introduction of new digital products & services.
Technology driving/driven processes and services have been upgraded/refined to improve
efficiency and to ensure compliance with the applicable laws & regulations.

Bank has assigned high priority to Cyber Security and is continuously improving the available
skills, processes and technology to maintain the highest level of security posture; including
introducing the culture of security consciousness and development of Cyber Security Action
Plans. IT Steering Committee and IT Security Team under guidance of the Board are managing
the different technological/Cyber Security needs of the Bank.

Baselll & In

In 2012, State Bank of Pakistan advised all banks to submit their information for Quantitative
Impact Study (QI5) = Basel . SME Bank has applied for exemption from submission of this
statement on the basis of already granted exemption from Basel Il; Now State Bank has
granted exemption to the Bank from implementation of Basel I & W0 till its
Restructuring/Privatization due to large investment required in software, human resource,
training, ete.

Capital Adequacy Return

Bank is required to maintaln CAR ratio at 10%. Howewver SME bank has applied to State Bank
for exemption from maintaining the CAR below benchmark.

Income Taxes

Tax Department served notices regarding Income Tax pertaining to tax years 2001-2002,
2003, 2004, 2005, 2006, 2008, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, 2016, 2017 & 2019.

The Tax Department filed references in Islamabad High Court (IHC) for the Tax Year 2001-02,
2003 & 2004 which are being contested.

The Tax Department has filed a petition for Leave to Appeal in the Supreme Court of Pakistan
in another case for the Tax Years 2003 & 2004,
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For the tax year 2005 tax department has filed an appeal with the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) against the decision,

The Bank has filed appeals with the ATIR for the Tax Years 2008 & 2010 among which Tax
Year 2008 is remanded back to Assessing Officer for verification of evidences, meanwhile
demand for the Tax Year 2008 is reduced in lieu of rectification application which has been
requested for adjustment against refunds for the tax year 2009.

For the Tax Year 2017 notice u/s 167/205 is responded appropriately upon which no further
action taken by the Tax Department.

For the tax year 2012 Order was passed ufs 221/113 of the ITO, 2001 which was pald,
meanwhile appeal is also filed by the bank with the ATIR. In another instance appeal filed with
the Commissioner (Appeals) against Order u/s 161/205 of the ITO, 2007 for the same year is
remanded back.

For the Tax Year 2013 appeal filed with the Commissioner (Appeals) who has remanded the
case back for de novo consideration.

For the Tax Year 2016 Order in Appeal u/s 129(1) has been passed in favor of the Bank. The
tax Department has also passed an Order w/s 161/205 against the Bank for the same year
which is panding before ATIR.

For the Tax Year 2017 Order w/s 161/205 has also been passed against which appeal with the
fommissioner (Appeals) has been instituted.

For the Tax Year 2019 a notice u/s 122(54) of the ITO, 2007 has been responded. No further
action by the Tax Department yet.

The Tax Department created tax demand U/S 161/205 for the Tax Years 2005, 2006, 2008,
2009, 2010, 207171 & 2073 which is being contested in ATIR,

Sales Tax

Tax Department also served notices regarding FED/sales tax pertaining to Tax Periods
Jan'2008 - Dec’ 2008, lan"2009-Dec 2009, Jan 2010-Dec 2010, Jul' 207 T-Jun'207 2.

For the Tax Period Jan'2008 - Dec'2008 and Jan'2010-Dec2010 Bank filed appeals with the
ATIR. The cases have been remanded back for fresh consideration.

For the Tax Period Jan'2009-Dec’ 2009 and Jul'20771-Jun'2012 the bank has filed appeals with
the ATIR.

Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA} has also passed an order creating Sales Tax demand for the
period Jan'2016-Dec'2016, which has been paid.

Risk Management Framework
Risk can be defined as a combination of probability / happening of an event and its

consequences / harms .The types and degree of a bank risk may be exposed to depend upon
mainly its policies , management, size, business activities, volume ete.
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Unless risks are assessed and measured it will not be possible to conmtrol risks. Further,
a precise identification and assessment of risk give a true position of the Bank standing and
helps in deciding future strategy as well as action plans accordingly. Management of risk by
banks in Pakistan is governed by rules and regulations set by the State Bank of Pakistan in its
capacity as a Regulator of the banks. SBF has involved Board of Directors of the bank to
contribute its prudence and professionalism in bank affairs for their growth and development.

The Board of Directors have put in place an effective risk management system to identify,
evaluate and mitigate risks undertaken in the achievement of long-term strategic objectives
of the Bank. Risk Management and Governance Framewaork of the Bank is calibrated on the
strong parameters. The Board of Directors approves risk policies and monitors the
imptementation of risk strategy .SME Bank Risk Management works following risk Policies
approved by the Board of Directors and Procedural Manual made in line with internal policy,
State Bank of Pakistan’s Prudential Regulations and industry best practices, Moreover, Board
Risk Management committee oversees the risk management function, bank risks, that can
cause losses to the Bank, to ensure appropriate supervision and governance of the risk
management function.

The Bank maintains a dedicated Risk Management Division independent from any business
and is reporting directly to the President8& CED through Division Head. Risk Identification,
assessment and monitoring of principal risks, their probability of occurrence and thair
potential impact to formulate appropriate risk mitigation strategy are carried out in bank
operations. The Bank has in place Risk Policies for all material risks faced by the Bank, which
includes: Credit Policy, Market & Liguidity Risk Policy, Operational Risk Management
Palicy, Information Security Policy, Green Banking Policy, compliance policy and fraud &
forgery policy etc.

Bank's Risk Assessment and Management System (RAMS) uses risk rating models, containing
qualitative and guantitative factors to assign credit risk ratings to various categories of
borrowers and identification of related proper mitigates keeping in view products  eligibility
criteria, exposure limits to counterparty credit etc. Concentration risk is also monitored with
respect business entities, business categories and sector wise etc as well as bank’s exposure
on a continuous basis for optimized returns. RMD has an Early Warning System to have a keen
watch over its credit portfolio for avoidance of infection  or non-performing loans.

SBP persistent emphasis on implementation of IFR5-8, Risk Management (RM) is also
supporting the concerned bank functions for meeting the requirements as prescribed by SBP
im this accounting standards.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has played a pioneering role in integrating environment risks
into overall credit assessment and developed Green Banking Guideline for Pakistan financial
sectorin 2017.

In November 2022, the State Bank has developed the ESRM Implementation Manual to help
banks/ DFIs identify and manage environmental and Social (E&S) risks by having the right
policies, procedure and tools in place. The E5RM implementation Manual builds on the work
banks have conducted after the GBGs were issued in 2017, The ESRM implementation Manual
provides tools and procedure to strengthen implementation of the GBGs.
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ESRM implementation Manual, being a procedural guide will be used by banks as a tools for
compliance of GBGs (with addition of social risks).

State Bank of Pakistan has given three (03) years to banks to fully implement ESRM since
issuance of Manual. SME Bank has initiated steps towards its implementation to have ESREM in
place within the given timeframe by S8P.

Prior to launch of ESEM Manual, the bank has put in place appropriate mechanism and
functions in line with SBP Green Banking Guidelines Following measures/steps were taken for
supplementing governmental and SBP efforts towards protection of environment.
Establishment of full-fledged Green Banking Division in line with SBP's Green Banking
Guidelines and Bank's GB Policy.

Green Banking Policy along with Enwironmental Risk Management Framework was duly
approved by Board of Directors and circulated for the guidance/implementation of all
concerned offices/ branches,

Reporting/monitoring and implementation status of Green Banking Guidelines to State Bank
of Pakistan on each quarter.

Regular sensitization of staff in branches and Head Office on Green Banking as part of
environmental consciousness.

Review/customization of all lending products with a purpose to promote green banking
facilitation, environmental friendly practices and reduction in carbon footprint,

Use of office stationery carrying Green Banking Logo for the awareness of General public /
staff. Mecessary procedure for environmental risk management and checklist for
environmental due diligence have been adopted by the bank,

Assigned resource consumption and impact reduction targets to the branches and Head office
level.

Privatization of Bank

Government of Pakistan (GoP) decided in their meeting held on November 19, 2018 to
relaunch the privatization transaction of the Bank through Privatization Commission (PC).
Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCoP) approved the new privatization program of the
Bank on March 06, 2019 to divest the GoPs equity stake in the Bank along with management
control to a strategic investor. Thereafter through a due process invitation for expression of
interest for acquisition of 93.88% shares of the Bank were advertised in newspapers an
December 31, 2019, The last date for submission of Eols and Statement of Qualifications
(S00s) was February 28, 2020. Five prospective investors have submitted their 5005 against
the advertisement, out of that four have been cleared by SBP. The final draft of share
purchase agreement (SPA) had been shared with three pre-qualified bidders.

A joint meeting of the Transaction Committee, SBP and pre-gualified bidders held on
December 29th, 2020 and December 30th, 2020 with reference to “Pre-Bid Conference™ and
"Valuation Model® wherein the queries of pre-gualified potential bidders were clarified and
some of tham pertaining to license, merger and MCR were forwarded to State Bank of
Pakistan for its clarification. Drafts of the bidding documents i.e. instruction te Bidders (ITB)
and Share Purchase Agreements (SPA) could not be finalized.
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Board of Privatization Commission in its meeting held on Movember 25, 2021 recommended
to delist SME Bank Limited from the list of privatization on recommendation of Financial
Adviser (FA) of Privatization Commission, who had asserted that despite all efforts and
interactions with the pre-gualified bidders to date, positive feedback from the pre- qualified
bidders was not forthcoming and owing to the deteriorating financial position of the Bank, the
transaction of privatization of SME Bank was recommended to shelve. The recommendation
of the Board of Privatization was presented to Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCoP) in its
meeting held on December 31, 2021. The CloP discussed delisting of SME Bank Limited fram
the active privatization program. The meeting, after a detailed discussion constituted a
committee under the chairmanship of the Finance Minister (FM) and representatives from SBP,
CECP, Finance Division and Privatization Division to evaluate alternative options for
proceeding further, Meetings of the Sub-Committee of CCoP were held on March 08, 2022, on
July 04, 2022 and on December 02, 2022 on Restructuring and Way Forward for SME Bank
Limited. FM observed in the meeting held on December 02, 2022 that it could not be
privatized when its financial condition was not that poor and now with its negative equity and
other adverse indicators, there would be no potential buyer. It was decided that meeting of
CCoP may also be held next week ta delist SME from Privatization Programme list. The Cabinet
Committee on Privatization (CCoP meeting was held on December 26, 2022, wherein summary
dated December 24, 2022 submitted by the Ministry of Privatization regarding “privatization
of SME Bank Limited”, and CCoP approved the recommendation of the PC Board, regarding
delisting of SME Bank from privatization programme, to enable Finance Division and SBP to
praceed further in the matter. CCoP in its meeting held on December 26, 2022 approved
delisting of SME Bank from Privatization List and subsequent to year end, Federal Cabinet in
its meeting held on March 17, 2023 approved Winding Down Plan for SME Bank as a Way
Forward.

Board of Directors

Board of Directors consists of seven members/directors nominated by the Federal
Government; one executive director (P&CED), four non-executive directors, and two
independent directors. Board meets frequently and ensures to meet at least every quarter.

{BoD) Board of Directors held six meetings during the year 2022, Attendance of which is given
below:

Directors Meetings Attended

Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad 4
Mr. Wagar Uddin Siddique

Mr. Muhammad Wagas Azeem
Mr. Rauf Ahmad

Mr. Hashim Raza

Mr. Omar Faroog

Mr. Emnamullah Khan

B MW oW D B d

Board has constituted five sub-committees namely (BAC) Board Audit Committee, (BRMC)
Board Risk Management Committee, (BHR&RC) Board Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee, (BNC) Board Nomination Committee & (BPC) Board Procurement Committee.
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Board Audit Committee

This committee consists of two independent directors and one non-executive director and has
been formed to assist the Board in fulfilling its statutory and fiduciary responsibilities. This
committee is advisory in nature and does not perform any management function. It assists
the Board in discharging its responsibilities and in complying with good governance. During
the year 2022, four meetings of (BAC) Board Audit Committee were held. Attendance in these
meatings was as follows:;

Directors Meetings Attended
Mr. Omar Faroog 3
Mr. Enamullah Khan 3
Mr. Wagar Uddin Siddique 4

Board Risk Management Committee

This Committee consists of three non-executive directors and it assists the Board in
measurement and mitigation of different risks. During the year 2022, four meetings of (BRMC)
Board Risk Management Committee were held. Attendance in these meetings was as follows:

Directors Meetings Attended
Mr. Hashim Raza 2
Mr. Muhammad Wagas Azeem i
Mr. Omar Faroog 2

Baard Human Resource and Remuneration Committes

Board Human Resource and Remuneration Committee consists of one executive director, one
non-executive director and one independent director to assist the Board in all staff related
matters, policies and benefits including compensation. During the year 2022, four meetings of
{BHR&RC) Board Human Resource Committee were held. Attendance in these meetings was as
follows:

Directors Meetings Attended
Mr. Dilshad Ali Ahmad b

Mr. Rauf Ahmad B

Mr. Enamullah Khan b

Board Procurement Committee

Board Procurement Committee comprising three directors (non-executive) has been formed
to prepare, review and recommend to the Board, Procurement related policies to ensure
transparency in procurement transactions and in dealing with suppliers. During the year 2022,
one meetings of (BPC) Board Procurement Committee were held. Attendance in these
meetings was as follows:
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Directors Meetings Attended

Mr. Hashim Raza 2
Mr. Muhammad Wagas Azeem A
Mr. Rauf Ahmad 2
Board Nomination Committee

This Committee consists of one executive director, one non-executive director and one
independent director. It meets on need basis. No meeting was held of (BNC) Board Nomination

Committee during the year 2022,

Corporate Governance and Financial Reporting Framework

S5ME Bank is committed to observe good corporate governance and has adopted the recently
promulgated governance framewaork for public sector companies. The Directors have ensured
that adequate arrangements are made to meet the financial recording and reporting
parameters and are pleased to state that:

proper books of accounts as required by Companies Ordinance have been maintained;

applicable international financial reporting standards have been followed in preparation of
annual accounts;

the accounts have been prepared on going concern basis and the Bank has adopted
prudent accounting policies and used sound accounting estimates;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statementis and accounting estimates. Any departure has been adeguately disclosed and

explained;

the financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank present fairly, state of
affairs of the Bank as at December 31, 2021, the results of its operations for the period
then ended, cash flow and changes in equity:

the appointment of chairman and other members of board and the terms of their
appointment along with the fee/remuneration adopted are in the best interests of the
Bank as well as in line with the best practices.

appropriate systems of internal control have been put in place for managing significant
risks, with adequate arrangements for its effective implementation, continuous rewview
and monitoring;

the Board of Directors is satisfied with Bank's ability to continue as a going concern; on the
basis explained in note 6.2.

there are no outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties and levies as on
December 31, 2021, except as disclosed in the financial statements;

the value of investments held for staff funds is reflected in note 34 of notes to the
accounts;
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= Bank has complied with the provisions of Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance)
Rules, 2013 and there has been no material departure from the best practices of
Corporate Governance,

s Key Operating and financial data of last six years is available in annual Reports,
Shareholding Pattern

The statement showing pattern of shareholding as at December 31, 2022, as required under
Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.

Loss per share

The basic and diluted after tax loss per share for the year 2022 is Rs. (5.22) (2027 Rs. (3.94)
Auditors

The existing auditors, M/s BDO Ebrahim and Co, Chartered Accountants, will retire at
conclusion of 19" Annual General Meeting. Being eligible, they have offered themselves for
reappointment.

Appreciation

While the Board appreciates the efforts of the management and staff trying to steer the Bank
out of the current situation, it also highlights the need of more efforts for improving the
recovery drive and for enhancing disbursements. The Board would also like to thank State
Bank of Pakistan and other regulatory authorities for their continued support and guidance
and the shareholders for the trust and confidence reposed in us.

Chairman
(OF the Meeting)
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REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE PUBLIC SECTOR
COMPANIES {CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) RULES, 2013

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the
Public Sector Compantes {Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013 (the Rules) prepared by the Board of
Directors of SME Bank Limited {“the Bank") for the year ended December 31, 1021,

The responsibility for compliance with the Rules is that of the Board of Directors of the Bank. Our
respansibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether
the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Bank's compliance with the provisions of the
Rules and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the
Rules. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Bank's personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Bank to comply with the Rules.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
aceounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Bank's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Rules require the Bank to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party
transactions distingulshing petween transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail
in arm's length transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and
recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and
have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not
carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party Lransactions were undertaken at
arm's length price or not,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
‘statement of Compliance’ does not appropriately reflect the Bank’s compliance, in all material
aspects, with the best practices contained in the Rules as applicable to the Bank for the vear ended
December 31, 2022,

ISLAMABAD
% 'E___
CHARTERED ACCOUMTANTS
DATED: 18 AUG 2023 Engagoment Partner: Abdul Qadeer

LDIM: CR20221009520U955wR 1

ADO Ebrahim B Co. Chartéred AcCoumntants
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Statement of Compliance
with the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013

SCHEDULE]
|See paragraph 2(1)}

SME Bank Lumaned

Menestry of Finunce
Year ended Decembaer 31, 20232

L This statement is being presented to comply with Regulanon G-1 of the Prodental Regulanons for
Corporate/ Commercial Banking issued by the State Bank of Pakistan and the Pubbic Sector
Companies  (Corporate  Govemance) Rules, 2013 (hercinafrer called “the Rules™), with any
amendments in them thereon, issued for the puspose of establishing o frumework of good
povernance, whereby o public secror company s managed i comphance with the best practices of
PLI].'II.H'.' SECHisr Eﬂ"mﬂm.

I[I. SME Bank Limsted {the Bank} has complied with the provisions of the Rules in the following

manaet
L The mdependent ditectors meet the enterin of mdependence, & defined wnder the | 2{d) '«I"
Hookes
E The Board has the requisite percentage of independent discctors. Ar present the | 3(E) v
bowrd sncludes:
Independent | Mr. Cmar Faroog 8-0F7-H20
Diereetors M. Enusrullah Khan 04-07-2020
Executive E 16-10-20r14
oG Mr. Dilshad Al Ahemad T30
et Me. Hashim Raza DE-O7-2030
Eecutive | MeWagar Uddin Siddigus 05-05-2021
I Me M. Wages Azeemn 08-07- 2020
HEER | Me Ranf Ahmad - 07-2020
3 The directers have eonfirmed thar none of them b eeeving a8 a direetor on more than | 3(5) v
five public sector companies and listed companies simultaneously, except theit
siabsadiarios,
d. The apponting authorides have appbed the At and proper coteda: gven 1o the | 3(7) v

Annexure i making nomenations of the persons for electson 23 board members undes
the provissons of the Aot

x The charman of the bourd & wodang separately from the chiel execunive of the | 4(1) v
Bank.
. “The chasrman has been elected by the Board of directors except where Charrman of | 4(4) L4

the Board has been pppadnted by the Government.

! The Board has evaluated the candidates for the posinen of the chief executive on the | 3T} | N/A
hmnflhﬁ:lndpnpﬂcdﬂluuﬂluﬂ!guﬂdmuqﬂnﬁ:dbrw
Cormmuasion. {Not appbcable where the chiefl executve has been nominamed by the
CrowerrmmeTl §




(] The Bank has prepared s "Code of Conduct™ to etmsre thue professionml standasds
and corporate vahses ure in place.

(1) The Board has essured that approprate steps have been mken o disseminate i
throughow the Bank along wirh irs supporang pobices and procedures, ncludsng
postng the same on the Bank's welnire. (www.amebankorg)

(] The Board has ser i place adeguate sysrems and contrals for the identification and
redresssl of gricvances ansng from unethical practices

5(4)

The Board has extablzsbed a system of sound internal contmol, o ensure compliance
with the fundamental pencoples of probity and proprety; abjectnaty, ntegnty and
hmcltl',: and rl:ll.l:lﬂ'ilh'p with the stnkcholders, m the manner ptn-:nbu'rf m the
Hubes.

5(5)

1n

The Board has developed and enforced an appropoate conflicr of inferest policy o
lay down circumstances of comstderanons when a person iy be deemed 10 have
actual or potential conflict of meerests, and the procedure for disclosing such interest,

Si5)h)
i)

Th;ﬂmnﬂhldru:lnpnd;ﬂﬂnq:]mnmﬂnpnh:ymlﬂqmmfﬁnnmmc
acual or percerved corruption in the Bank.

SiE(h)
il

12

The Board has mmtdnqmln].' nfnppnﬂmﬂq'brnmh[ﬂi‘migupﬂnmdﬁn
T.'|I.'u-|:-|:|:|.u.rr| for makg appointmedits and for determining terms and condivons of

eI,

B{EHe)
iy

1M

The Board hias emmured compliance with the low pe ach as the Bank's mteenal tules

and procedures relating to public procurement, render regulatons, end purchasing
and rechnacal standards, when dealing with supphers of goods snd services.

B{EHe)
il

14

The Board has developed o viston or mission seatement and corporte strategy. of the
Blank,

5(6}

15

The Board has developed sigmificant poficies of the Bank, A complen recond of
partrculary of significant poiicies along with the dates oo which dhey were approved or
armended, has been mamixined.

5(7)

By,

The board has quantfied the outly of any action n respect of mny serace delivered
ﬂl'ﬂﬂﬂd.l mldh}'ﬂuﬂlnhu:ptﬂc FETVICE nl:rll'ﬂltimy:.nd hrrv: u:hrn.lﬂuﬂl.h
re:pu.ﬂr{m nnrmpu:inlz compenzaton t the Grovermmeni for comsderadon.

5(8)

M/A

1.

Thie Bosrd has ensured compliance warh polcy direcnons reguirements received fram
the Goverment.

5(11)

&} The board has met st least foar wmes durng the vear.

b} Written nobces of the board mechings, along wsth sgpenda and wvnrrhng Papers,
were circulated at lease seven |:|.n.r| before e m.r\ch.nE:l..

€} The manutes of the meetings were approprately recorded and carealated.

a(1)
62}

(%)

LS

L b

The Board has momitored and assessed the performance of senior Managoment on
annual bunds and held them sceountable for sccomplishing obectives, goals and key
pecformance mdicator set for this purpose.

82)

The board has revewed and approved the related party transactions placed before 1t
aiter recommendations of the audit commitice. A party wae record of fransachons

L L L L TR P




2%

i) The Board has spproved the profit und loss sccount for, snd balunce sheer as ot the
end of, the firs, second ed third guartes of the year 08 well us the Grancisl vear end
i) In case of histed PRy, the Board has prepared half rearly sccounn and undertaken
limured scope review by the swditon.

¢ The Board has pliced the anmual fnancial statements on the Bastk's website.

All the boand members underwent an onentation cousse armanged by the Bank 1o
apprse them of the matenal developments and informanon as specified in the Rules,

n

) The board has formed the requisite comnuitees, as specified in the Rules,

L) The commsniness acti provided with writeen tetin of refetenoe dofonng their duties,
authoeity snd eomposinon.

o) The momanes of the mestngs of the commustees were circolazed 19 all the board
members.

) The committees were chaared by the [nl.!l:-nng nem-exccubive dirccion:

M. Chnar Froog
M. Fawrasllah Bhan

Mr AL Wagas Aeeem
Mz, Hagham Raza
o Mecting was held

during the year

Audn Comnuttes

| Huirman Resource & Remunction
Commatbes

Mrocurement Commiios

Hink .".Iu'l:n&unmf L ormamatiee

Nominaton Committee

|| e i

2

The E:url:] has npp-:nﬂd appoantmcn of Choef Ferancisl (ircer, Bank ."'-!EI:I'EI:ILTI.'IHi
{'.'h.ml' Ir:l:n:uI Atl:‘:i!-n{., b-:r \r}n.l.'r'ﬂ:[ name :l].h!, ik I'J:'l.ut IEI.'DL'IT!EII'I:iDI‘l. .l.n.l:l ferms
aind condimons of empla

Ih

The Chief Financial DEl’mﬂ and the Bank Secretary buve tecpusste qualification
prescobed i the Hules,

14

Thie Rank has adopied Inermanionsl Fowncisl Feportng Standards aotified by the
Cormnitrissson in teims of sub-accton (1] of secton 225 of the Act,

The diecton’ tepore for this year has been prepared in complance with the
reguircmiends of the Act and the Rules and fully descrbes the sabens mattens regured
16 b desclosed.

i

The directors, CEO and executives, or their pelanves, are now, directly or mdirectly,
concemed or interested i any ‘contract or arfangement entered nto by or on behalf
af the Bank except those disciosed 1o the Bank.

8) A formal and transparent procedure for fxng the remuneraton packages of
indivichml directoes has been set an place and mo director & involved in deoding has
EPATE DTS Criaon.

I3} The gnnual repoet of the Bank contans cotena and detils of remuneraton of each
director.

1

The Grancial staements of the Bank were duly endoteed by the chiel executive and
chiel francial officer before considerstion and spproval of the sudit commines and
the Board

31

The board has foemed an audie comomitees, with defined and wotten terms of

refetence, and hlrmi the fnﬂﬁm

Ar, Omar Faroodg Independent Businessman
Me Honamullsh Khan | Independent Baiinessman

v, Wsgar Uddin Non-Exetunve | [3ED) Mmstoy of Indsmes
Lidddlicus Threstaor & Producnon

2141)
apnd




The Chief Execunve and Charman of the Board are not membess of the Auwdit

Commatnee,

() The chief financial officer, the chiel mtemal sodimor, and & representative of the
extermal auditors artended all meetings of the audit committee ut which 1ssues relating
to accoumis and mudic were decmsed.

b The audit committee met the externsl suditors, ar beast once a year, wathout the
presence of the chief nancial afficer, the chiel intemal subitor and other execunves,
ic] The sudit commuttee met the chaef mremal oudisor and other members of the
mrermal sudiy funchon, ot lexst once & year, without the presence of cheef fnancial
afficer and the external auditoe,

20)

{a) The Board has ser wp an effective mtemal sudit funcrion, which has an suidic
charter, duly spproved by the sudit comnutiee.

(b} 'The chief internal suditne has :E-:r.liﬂt: qul].iEr!:hun and CNECOCnCE le:rﬂ:r:d n
the Rubes.

i) The inrermal audit repors bave been provided o the extemal auditoes for their

ad

The external auditers of the Bank have confirmed that the firm and all s partners are
m complinnee with Inematonal Federaton of Accounmnts (IFAC) pudelines on
Code of Ethwes as applicable in Pakntn

2349

L

The auditors have confiemed that they have observed spplicable guidelines wsued by
TFAL with regard 1o provissen of non-audin services,

23(5)

President

DereBay

Independent Dircctor




Explanation for Non-Compliance
With the Public Sector Companies (Corporate Governance) Rules, 2013
For the year ended December 31, 2022

We confirm that all ather matenal requirements envisaged in the Rules have been complied with except for the
following, townrd which reasonable progress & belng made by the Bank to seek compliance by the end of next

pEcountng yeas

per Mol leues # I.No 8(1)I1-

. Al
The chairman of the bosed 15 working separately | [L/2019554 dated  July 16, 2020
1 3 from the chiet execunve of the Bank. directed  President/CEO to preside
; the meetings: of the Board under

Bection T8 of  Bank
{Nanonalizagon) Acx, 1974,
As per MoF leter # F.No.8(1)IF-
I1/2019-554 dated July 16, 2020
directed President/CEO o preside
the meetngs: of the Board wnder
Section Wiy of  Bank
(Nationaliation) Act, 1974,

P

The chairman has been elected by the Board of
Z 44 directors excepr where Chairman of the Board has
been appointed by the Government.

s

President Independent Director
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IHDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SME BANK LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Adverse Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of SME BANK LIMITED (the Bank),
which comprise the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 1027, the
unconsolidated profit and loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, along with unaudited certified return received from the branches except for six branches
which have been audited by us and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse Opinlon
section of our report, the accompanying financial statements do not present Talrly the state of the
Bank's affairs as at December 31, 2022 and of the loss and the comprehensive loss, the changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan, the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, and the Companies Act,
2017,

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1.  The Bank has Investment in its subsidiary, SME Leasing Limited (SMEL), which is carried In these
financial statements at Rs. B0.748 million (net of provision of Rs, 134.709 million) and has an
outstanding running finance exposure of Rs. 139.158 million at the reporting date. SMEL
continues to operate on a net loss basls and therefore the recoverability of investment and
running finance exposure Is doubtful, Accordingly, we are unable to determine the extent of
impairment that might be necessary to be recorded against the current carrying values of
investment and running finance and its possible effect on accumulated losses of the Bank.,

2.  We were unable to verify Deferred tax asset of Rs. 1,165.081 million due to brought forward
losses. It has been recognized In the current financial statements as in the opinion of the

management there is certainty regarding realisability of the amount from expected net profits
in the future.

3. Asexplained in Note 10.3, the loan portfolios of Small Business Finance Corporation (SBFC) and
Regional Development Finance Corporation (RDFC) were transferred to the Mational Bank of
Pakistan as due to envisaged privatization of the Bank, however, the portfolio continues 1o
appear as an asset in the books of the Bank.

Page-1
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4,  Asexplained in the Material Uncertainties relating to Going Concern Assumption section of our
report, the going concern assumption of the Bank is no more appropriate. Therefore, as per
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards, all the assets are required to be
adjusted to their realizable value and liabilities are required to be disclosed on settlement
amount as the Bank may not be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business. However, the Bank has presented these financial statements on
going concern basis. In the absence of assessment of realizable value of assets and settlement
amount of liabilities, we are unable to assess the impact of required adjustments on these
financial statements. Moreover, subseguent to the year end the Cabinet Committee on
Privatization approved the Winding Down Plan for the Bank on March 17, 2023, The Bank has
started its winding down process accordingly. As part of this plan, the Bank has closed its
Rawalpindi branch. In addition, the Bank plans to close nine more branches by the end of the
subsequent year, as outlined in the approved plan, The President requestad urgent assistance
from the Government of Pakistan through letter No. SMEB: HO: PRCEO: 23/113 dated March 13,
2023 to help the Bank pay its customer depositors. The Government of Pakistan agreed 1o
provide Rs. 5,557 billion to the Bank, On March 27, 2023, the 5BP informed the Bank through
letter Mo, BPRD (R & PD)/ SMES 2023/ 2443 that the funds approved by the Government of
Pakistan had been transferred to the Bank's account maintained with SBP, The Bank has paid
92% of Its customer depositors with these funds till May 20, 2023,

we conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I5As) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the unconsclidated financial Statements section of our report. We
are Independent of the Bank In accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institule of Chartered
Accauntants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

material Uncertainties relating to Going Concern

we draw attention to note 6.2 to the financial statements which describes that during the current
period, the Bank incurred a net loss of Rs. 1,249,876 million (2021 Rs. G432 421 millkon) resulting into
accumulated losses of Rs. 7,963,685 million {2021: Rs. 6,846.330 million). As of December 31, 2022
the reparting date, total liabilities of the bank have exceeded its total assets by Rs. 5,364,831 millbon
(2021: 4,260.976 million) indicating the negative equity and due Lo surplus of current demand
labilities over its total unencumbered current liquid assets creating a negative capital of Rs.
5,364.831 milllon (2021 Rs. 4,260.976) which indicates the Bank’'s Inadequate capacity to ensure the
timely repayments, Due to cash inadequacy the Bank was unable to meet the statutory solvency
requirements of minimum capital (MCR) of Rs 10,000 million and the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
of 10%. Due to continued stressed financial conditions the Bank's credit rating fell from B negative
{single B-) to CCC, Based on the operational results SBP granted exemption from meeting the MCR
and CAR up to December 31, 2019 or restructuring/ privatization, whichever is earlier, subject to
submission of a concrete plan from the Ministry of Finance (MoF) to provide a firm commitment to

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants Prage-2
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inject the required amount of capital funds in the Bank, if its privatization does not materialize by
March 31, 2020, Further, the Bank is in the process of privatization whereby Privatization Commissian
has referred the case to Cabinet Committes on Privatization (CCoP) on December 31, 2021, The CCaP
constituted a committee to evaluate alternative options for further processing. As stated in note 6.1
to the financial statements, CCoP meetings were held on March 08, 2022, July 04, 2022, December
02, 2022 and finally in its mesting held on December 28, 2022, CCoP approved the delisting of the
Bank from the privatization list. These conditions indicate that going concern assumption of the Bank
is no more appropriate. Our opinfon Is modified in respect of this matter,

Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters:

1. Hote 14.3 to the financial statements, which describes in detail the status of possession of
the Bank's property located in Lahore,

Z. Hote 6.1 to the financial statements, which describes in detail the current status of
privatization of the Bank,

Our opindon s not modifled in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the unconsolidated financial
statements and our auditors report therean.

Our opinizgn on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial stateménts, our responsibility ks to read
the other information and, In doing so, consider whether the other information I8 materially
inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible far the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the
requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines s necessary to enable the preparation of

y. =
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IBDO

unconsolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of ernar.

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
cancern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do o,

The Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.

Auditors Respensibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors report that includes our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [54s as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial
statements.

Az part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 'We also:

# |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from frawd is higher than for one
resulting from  error, as fraud may invelve collusiop, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal controd.

#* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

# Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our awditors report to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated financial statements ar, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our apinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit

A
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a gaing concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the unconsclidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the unconsolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Adverse
Opinton section of our reéport, we further report that in our opinion:

b

cl

dj

proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 20171 and the returns referred above from the branches have been found adequate for the
purpose af our audit;

the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated profit and loss account
and the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, wnconsolidated statement of
changes in equity and unconsolidated cash flow statement (together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank and the transactions of the Bank which have
come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank; and

takat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 19B0), was
deducted by the bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of
that Ordinance,

We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty percent of the total
loans and advances of the Bank.

The engagement partner an the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is Abdul Qadeer,

ISLAMABAD AL s

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.

DATED: 18 AUG 2023 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
UDIN: AR202210095355712erz
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SME BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asg at December 31, 2022
2022 2021
Naote (Rupees in '000)
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 7 609,236 824,044
Balances with other banks B 1L.307 2,737
Lendings to financial institutions - -
[nvesiments a 4,035,290 4 237.715
Advances L] 1,329,573 1,596,181
Fixed nsseis 1l JRn310 424,240
Intangible assets 12 79 1,455
Deferred tax assets - net 13 1,165,061 | 008,204
Crher assels 14 496,712 512,849
B8 268 B.608,327
LIABILITIES
Bills pavable 15 34,591 19071
Borrowings 16 3,499 355 3,206,289
Deposits and other accounts 17 B.A472.488 B.248.271
Liability against assets subject to finance lease = .
Subgordinated lowns - -
Deferved tax labilitics - z
Other liabalities 18 1. 376,665 1. 3954672
13,383,099 12,869,303
NET LIABILITIES {5.3_5;1331} (4.260,976)
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 9 2,392,507 2,392,507
Reserves 206,526 206,526
Surplus/{deficit) on revaluation of assets - net of tax 20 {179) (13,679)
Unappropriated loss g".’.&ﬂ,ﬁﬂi&! (6, BdA6,330)
(5.364.831) {4,260,976)
-——
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21

The annexed notes from | to 42 and annexure | form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

——

2

-

Credy,

57

President /CEO

kel Fimancial O {ficer

Direcior H//'i)irm.—l.nr
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SME BANK LIMITED
I'nconzalidated Profit and Loss Accouni
For the year ended December 31, 2022

2022 2021

Note {Rupees in "000)
Mark-up/ return/ interest camed 22 TR4.430 609,592
Mark-up/ return/ interest expensed 23 1,228,624 717,637
Met mark-up’ interest loss (444,194) {108 045)
NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST INCOME
Fee nnd commission ingome 24 13,282 14, (0%
Dividend income 3043 2,380
Foreign exchange income - -
Income / (loss) from dervatives - =
Crain/{ loss) on securities 25 (2,839 925
Other income 26 10,302 2,169
Total non-markup/ interest income 23,788 19,683
Toml Income/{loss) {4200, 4106) (BB, 362)
NON MARK-UP/ INTEREST EXPENSES
Operatmg expenses 27 956,654 911,354
Workers welfare Tund - -
Other charges 28 67,856 &9, 183
Totul non-miarkup interest expenses 1,024,510 980,517
Loss before provisions (1,444.916) (1,068 8949)
Provisions and write offs - net 20 (46,687 (17,452)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (1,398.2129) (1,051,447
Taxation 30 (148.353) { 109,026)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (1,249.876) {942.421)
Basic/diluted loss per share (rupees) 3l (5.21) {1.94)

The annexed notes from | 1o 42 and annexure | form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

A

Do

BQ 9 }‘7; Director /” ;;ctnr @;‘ﬁ%‘/

President / CEO Chif Financial Oificer




SME BANK LIMITED
Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended December 31, 2022

2022 2021
{Rupees in "000)
Loss after taxation for the year (1,249.876) (942,421

Other comprehensive income

ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss

account in subsequent periods

Movement in deficit on revaluation of investment - net 13,500 (16,265)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

account in subsequent periods

Remeasurement gain{loss) on defined benefit obligations - net 132,521 (142,207
Total comprehensive loss (1,103,855) (1,100,893}

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure | form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial
statements,

President S CED Chivf Financial Officer lJlrcmur irector Di:rm..mr




SME BANK LIMITED
Unconsolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended December 31, 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIFS
Loss before taxation
Less: Dividend income

Adjustments:
Depreciation
Aumorlization
Provision and write-offs
Ciain on sale of fixed assets
Mark-up expense on leased liability against ROU assets

Decrease [ {increase) in operating assets
Lendings 1o financial institutions
Held-for-trading securities
Advances
Other assets (excluding advance taxation)

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payable
Borrowings from financial institutions
Deposits and other accounts
Orher liabilities (excluding current taxation)

Income tax paid
Net cash Mow used in operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Met disinvestment in available-for-sale securities

Net investment in held-to-maturity securitics
Dividend received

Investment in operating (ixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Net cash Mow generated from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment of lease linbility agninst ROU assets
Net cash Mow used in from fnancing activities

Decrease in eash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the vear

The annexed

L/ /

Pl'l:lll:'l.'nl,u"'LLD I Financial O fficer

2022 2021
Nate (Rupees in ‘00
(1,398,229} (1,051,447)
{3.043) 2.380
(1.401.272) (1,054,027
58,289 64,505
6 1,078
(46,687) {17,452)
(9.328) (1,159
67,851 69,183
71,021 116,155
(1,330,241) (937.872)
J07.990 (47,509)
16,360 42,487
324,350 (3,022}
15,520 (BO.915)
293,066 (921,324)
224 217 G4, 0059
123,823 (28.268)
656,026 (384,408
(349.265) (1,327 .392)
(3,343) {2,746)
(352,608) (1,330,138)
183,448 1,373,663
32,400 :
J.43 2580
(7,487) {4,559)
0,328 1,186
220,732 1,572,870
(85,262) (85,901
(85.262) (B35S0 )
(217,138) 156,831
827,681 HT0,850

32 610,543 §27.681

rom 1 to 42 and annexure 1 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financ ulatemer:aﬂ

/,M“
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Dlmctnr&v




SME BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

: Surplus/{deficit) ;
hh?m Stutatory in rrt.l-‘valuitiuu of Unappropriated Tutal
capital reserve : loss
investmenis
(Rupees in "004)
Balanee as at January 01, 2021 2,392,507 206,526 2586 (5,761,702) (3, 160,083)
Total comprehensive income for the vear
ended December 31, 2021
Loss after taxation for the year : — 2 (942.421) (942,421)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax . " (16,265) (142.207) (158.472)
Balance as at December 31, 2021 2,392,507 206,526 (13,679) (6,846,330)  (4,260,976)

Total comprehensive income for the vear

ended December 31, 2022

Loss after taxation for the year . - - (1,249,876 {1.249.876)
Other comprehensive income - net of tax 13,500 132,521 146,021

Balance as at December 31, 2022 ! I'.-“}.‘: !T.HJ,GES} (5,304,831)

21,392,507 Eﬂﬁ.,ﬁi

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 and annexure | form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

A
President / CEOD l:lzifcf Firnuencial O fficer DYircctar :n.--.-:tnr D¥irector




SME BANK LIMITED
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

1

1]

1.2

GENERAL INFORMATION

SME Bank Limited (the Bank) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on October
30, 2001 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 having its registered office at 56-F,
Mazim-ud-Din Road, F-6/1, Blue Area Islamabad. The Bank obtained its business commencement
certificate on April 16, 2005 which became effective from the date of its issue. The Bank 15 a
scheduled commercial bank engaged in the business of banking with the primary objective to
support and develop Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) sector in Pakistan by providing
necessary financial assistance and business support services on sustainable basis. The Bank 1s
operating through a network of’ 13 commercial banking branches, Based on the latest credit rating
report dated November 22, 2018 issued by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA),
credit rating of the Bank was "CCC" in the long term and "B" (Single B) in the short term.
Subsequent to above, the credit rating of Bank has not been updated.

In terms of Bank’s License No. BL-03 dated September 13, 2004 issued under section 27 of the
Banking Companies Ordinance 1962, the Bank is required to hold minimum paid-up-capital (net

_of losses) of Rs. 1.0 billion at the time of issuance of said license, and at all times thereafter
during which the above capital is required to be raised to Rs, 1.5 billion by December 31, 2004
and to Rs. 2.0 billion by December 31, 2005 or any other amount prescribed by State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) from time 1o time. SBP granted exemption vide its letter No.
BPRID/BA&CPD/A46/332/2020 dated January 06, 2020 from mecting the minimum capital
requirement (MCR) till December 31, 2019 or completion of restructuring/privatization of the
Bank, whichever is earlier, Although further relaxation of MCR has not been granted but SBF has
not objected to the non-compliance of MCR as it is fully aware about the progress of the
privatization of the Bank.

Amalgamation of defunct RDFC and SBFC

The Federal Government promulgated the Regional Development Finance Corporation (RDFC)
and Small Business Finance Corporstion (SBFC) Amalgamation and Conversion Ordinance,
2001 (the Ordinance 2001) setting forth the mechanism of amalgamation of defunct RDFC and
SBFC. Both these entities were Development Financial Institutions {(DFIs). In pursuance of the
Ordinance 2001, Finance Division, Ministry of Finance (MoF) issued an Order (SRO (1) 2001)
dated December 29, 2001 setting forth the scheme of amalgamation of RDFC and SBFC with the
Bank effective January 1, 2002, Pursuant to this scheme entire asscts and liabilities of defunct
RDFC and SBFC as at December 31, 2001 were transferred 1o the Bank at fair value. These two
institutions stand dissolved and ceased 1o exist effective January 1, 2002, The Bank allotted its
shares to the share holders of defunct RDFC and SBFC in proportion to their shareholding therein

hased on the fair value of net assets of defunet RDFC and SBFC on December 31, 2001.
e
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SME BANK LIMITED

MNotes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022

2.3

3l

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These unconsolidated Nnancial statements have been presented in accordance with the format
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan vide BPRD Circular No. 02 of 2018 dated January 25,
2018,

These unconsolidated financial statements are separate financial statements of the Bank in which
the investment in subsidiary is stated at cost and has not been sccounted for on the basis of
reporied results and net assets of the investee which is done in consolidated financial statements.

The unconsolidated financial siatemenis are presented in Pakistani Rupee, which is the Bank's
functional currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless
otherwise stated.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) issued by
the International Accounting Siandards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act,
2017, provisions of and the directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the
Companies Act, 2017 and directives issued by SBP and the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan (SECPF). Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962,
Companies Act, 2017 or the directives issued by SBP and SECP differ with the requirements of
IFRS, requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and
the said directives shall prevail.

The SBP has deferred the applicability of Intemational Accounting Standard 40, "Investment
Property” (IAS 40), for banking companies through BSD Circular Letter No. 10 dated August 26,
2002 till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated April 28, 2008,
the International Financial Reporting Standard 7,"Financial Instruments: Disclosure” (IFRS 7},
has not been made applicable for banks in Pakistan. Accordingly, the requirements of these
standards have not been considered in the preparation of these interim unconsolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the
requiremnents prescribed by the SBP through various circulars. Further, IFRS 9 'Financial
Instrument’ has not been adopted as SBP has deferred the applicability of IFRS 9 till January 01,
2024 vide SBP BPRD Circular Letter no, 03 dated July 035, 2022.

SECP vide its notification SRO 633 (12014 dated July 10, 2014, adopted IFRS-10, Consolidated
Financial Statements, effective from the periods starting from June 30, 2014, However, vide its
notification SRO 36(1)/2016 dated January 28, 2016, it has been notified that the requirements of
IFRS-10 and section 228 of the Companies Act, 2017 will not be applicable with respect to the

investment in mutual funds established under Trust structure.
2

Page -2



SME BANK LIMITED
Naotes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

3.2

3.2.1

3.2.2

APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS

New accounting standards, amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the

year ended December 31, 2022

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended
December 31, 2022, These siandards, amendments and interpretations are either nol relevant 1o
the Company's operations or ar¢ not expected lo have significant impact on the financial

statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective date
{anmual pe riods
beginning on or after)
Amendments 1o IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference 1o
the conceptual framework January 01, 2022
Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Extended practical relief
reparding Covid - 19 related rent consessions April 01, 2021
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment' -
Proceeds before intended use January 01, 2022
Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets' - Onerous Contracts - Cost of fulfilling a
contract January 01, 2022

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

New accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting
periods, beginming on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards,
amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain

additional disclosures.

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on or after)
Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases' - Lease liability in a sale and January 01, 2024
leaseback
Amendments to [AS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - January 01, 2024
Non-current liabilities with covenants
A
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SME BANK LIMITED
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022

4.1

Effective date
{annual periods
beginning on or after)

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ - January 01, 2024
Classilication of liabilities as current or non-current
Amendments to TAS |'Presentation of Financial Statements' -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies January 01, 2023
Amendments to 1AS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors' - Definition of Accounting
Estimates January 01, 2023
Amentments to [AS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related 1o
Assets and Liabilities arising from a single transaction January 01, 2023

'.Fhr: following new standards and interpretations have been ssued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards
IFR5 17  Insurance Contracts

Effective date of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ has extended by SBP to annual periods
beginning on or after January 01, 2024 vide SBP BPRD Circular Letter no, 03 dated July 03,
2022 for banks having asset size less than 500 billion, [FRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in
IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement, addresses recognition,
classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
standard has also introduced & new impairment model for financial assets which requires
recognition of impairment charge based on an ‘expected credit losses”™ (ECL) approach rather than
the ‘incurred credit losses' approach as currently followed. The ECL approach has an impact on
asscts of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk. The impact on the Bank's financial statements
is being assessed as per implementation guidelines.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost

convention as modified for certain investments which are carried at fair value, obligations in
respect of defined benefit schemes and lease liability under IFRS 16 at their present values.

s
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SME BANK LIMITED
Naotes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2012

4.2

al

5.2

Use of eritical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards as applicable in Pakistan requires the use of certain accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank's accounting
policies. The Bank uses estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimate will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resules. Estimates and
judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements arc as follow:

i) Classification of investments

i) Provisionfimpairment against investments, advances and other assets

iii) Valuation and impairment of available for sale securities

iv) Useful life and residual value of property and equipment and intangible assets
v} Taxation

vi) Stafl retirement benefits

vii) Leases

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements
are consistent with those of the previous financial year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other
banks and call money lendings.

Investmenis

Investments other than those categorized as held-for-trading are initially recognised at fair value
which includes transactions costs associated with the investments, Investments classified as held-
for-trading are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the profil
and loss account.

All regular way purchases/sales of investment are recognised on the trade date, i.¢., the date the
Bank commits to purchase/sell the investments, Regular way purchases or sales of investment
require delivery of securities within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

A
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SME BANK LIMITED
Motes to the Unconsolidated Financial Stutements
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

The Bank has classified its investment portfolio, except for investments in subsidiary into *held-
for-trading’, ‘held-to-maturity” and “available-for-sale’ as follows:

Held for trading

These are securities which are acquired with the intention to trade by taking advantage of short-
term market/interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days. These are carried al
market value, with the related unrealized gain/(loss) on revaluation being taken 1o profit and loss
account,

Held to maturity

These represent investmenis acquired by the Bank with the intention and ability to hold them upto
maturity. These are carmed at amortized cost less impairment if any. Impairment in debt securities
is determined in accordance with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by SBP.

Available for sale

“These are investments that do not fall under the held-for-trading or held-to-maturity categories.
These are carried at market value except in case of ungquoted securities where market value is not
available, which are carried at the lower of cost and break-up value less provision for diminution
in value, if any. Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation is taken to ‘surplus/{deficit) on revaluation of
assets’ account shown as part of equity, On derecognition or impairment in quoted available-for-
sale investments, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported as “surplusi{deficit) on
revaluntion of assets’ below equity is included in the profit and loss account for the vear.

Provision for diminution in values of securities (other than term finance certificates) is made afier
considering mmpairment 1if any in their values, where the decline in prices of available for sale
equity securities is significant or prolonged, it is considered impaired and included in
unconsolidated profit and loss account. Provision for diminution in the value of term finance
certificates 1s made as per Prudential Regulations 1ssued by SBP.

Held-for-trading and quoted available-for-sale securities are marked to market with reference 1o
ready quotes on Reuters page (PERV) or MUFAP or the Stock Exchanges, as the case may be.

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost less impairment, if any. The investment in subsidiary is
not marked to market as per prudential regulations issued by SBP.
S
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SME BANK LIMITED
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022

53

Agreements for sale and purchase of securities (repo and reverse repo)

Securitics sold under repurchase agreement (repoe) are retained in the unconsolidated financial
statements as investments and a liability for consideration received 18 included in borrowings. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is treated as mark-up expense and recognized over
the period of contract.

Securities purchased under agreement to resell (reverse repo) are included in lendings to financial
institutions. The difterence between purchase and resale price is treated as mark-up income and
recognized over the period of the contract.

Advances

Advances are staled net of specific and general provisions, Provisions are made in accordance
with the requirements of Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and charged to the profit and
loss account. These regulations prescribe an age based critena for classification ol mon-
performing loans and advances and computing provision/allowance thereagainst. Such regulations
“also require the Bank to maintain general provision‘allowance against its Small Entity (SE)
advances portfolio at specified percentage of such portfolio.

Advances are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
Capital work-in progress, operating fixed assets, intangibles, depreciation and amortization

Capital work-in-progress

Capital-work-in progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, il any. These are
transferred to operating fixed assets as and when the assets are available for use.

Operating fixed assets - owned

These are staled at cost less impairment loss and accumulated depreciation except for freehold/
leasehold land. Land is stated at cost less impmrment, 1f any.,

Mainienance and normal repairs are charged o unconsolidated profit and loss account as and
when incurred. Major renewals and improvemenis are capitalized.

e
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Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on straight line method at the rates given in note 11.1 commencing from
the month in which the asset is available for use. No depreciation is charged in the month of
disposal of the asset. The residual value, useful life and depreciation method is reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Ciains or losses on disposal of property and equipment are taken to the unconsolidated profit and
loss account.

Intangible asscts

An intangible asset is recognized only if it is identifiable, the Bank has control over the asset, it is
probable that economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

All intangible assets that meet the recognition criteria are initially measured at cost and are
umortized on a straight line basis at the rate given in note 12 commencing from the month when
these assets are available for use. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. The residual value, useful life and amortization
method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Bank as a lessee

The Bunk recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying asset,

Right-of-use (Rol’) asscts

At the commencement date of the lease, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at the
present  value of lease liability, Subsequently, RoU asseis are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. Roll assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shoner of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

Leasce liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liability measured at the
present value of the consideration (lease payments) to be made over the lease term and is adjusted
for lease prepayments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, unless it is not readily determinable, in which case the lessee may use the incremental rate
of borrowing. After the commencement date, the carryving amount of lease liability is increased to

reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease pavments made.
e
B
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5.7

Determination of the lease term for lease contracis with renewal and termination options
{Bank as a lessee)

The Bank determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, wogether with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease il it is reasonably certain 1o be exercised, or any
pericds covered by an option 1o terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not 1o be exercised.

The Bank has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Bank
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option o renew or lerminate the lease. That 15, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.

Incremental borrowing rate (IBR)

The IBR is the rate of markup that the Bank would have 1o pay to borrow over a similar term, and
with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
assel n a similar economic environment., The Bank estimates the |BR using observable inputs
=uch as market interest rates,

Impairment

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment, whenever
evenis or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be
recoverable, If such indication exists, and where the carrying value exceeds the estimated
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. The resulting
impairment loss is taken to the unconsolidated profit and loss account. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does nol exceed the camrying value that
would have been determined net of depreciation/amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

The available for sale equily investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the value below its cost. Impairment loss is recognized in unconsolidated
profit & loss account,

Depaosits

Deposits are recorded at the nominal values of proceeds received. Markup accrued on deposits is
recognised separately as part of other liabilities and is charged to unconsolidated profit and loss

account on a time proporiion basis,

A
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5.9

310

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the unconsolidated profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income or below equity, in which case it is
recognised in other comprehensive income or below equity.

Current

Provision for current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year using tax
rates applicable at the date of unconsolidated statement of financial position and any adjustment
to tax payable for previous vears.

Deferred

Defierred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary
difTerences between the carrving amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit at the rates that are expected
1o apply to the period when the differences reverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted,
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits
can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefits will be realized.

The Bank also recognizes deferred tax asset/liability on deficit/surplus on revaluation of
investments which is adjusted against the related deficit/surplus in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard on “Income Taxes" (IAS 12)

The Bank takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Bank’s views differ from the views taken by the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Bank considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities,

Staff retirement and other benefits
The Bank operates following stafT retirement and other benefit schemes for its employees:
Defined benefit plan - pension and gratuity scheme

Fully funded defined benefit pension and gratuity scheme for eligible emplayves. Contributions
are made in accordance with the actuarial valuation which is carried out periodically using
'‘Projected Unit Credit Method', All actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately through
other comprehensive income.

A
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Defined benefit funded gratuity scheme

The Bank operates a defined benefit funded gratuity scheme for its contractual employees. The
obligation under the defined benefit unfunded gratuity scheme is recogmized on the basis of
setuarial valuation using the 'Projected Unit Credit Method',

Benevalent fund

Ihe Bank also operates a contributory benevolent fund for all its eligible employees (defined
benefit scheme), Contributions to this fund were made equally by the Bank and employees till
March 2002, Thereafter it is wholly contributed by the Bank at the mate of 2% of basic salary with
a ceiling of Rs. 200 per month per employee. Annual contribution towards the defined benefit
geheme are made on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Compensated absences

The Bank provides compensated sbsences, an unfunded scheme, as per entitlement to all its
permanent and contractual employees. For its eligible employees, related provision 1s made in
JAccordance with actuarial valuation. Provision for the vear is charged to unconsolidated profit and
loss account, The amount recognized in unconsoelidated statement of financial position represents
present value of defined benefit obligation.

Defined benefit plans are provided to employees of the Bank. Calculations in this respect require
assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of increase in
remuneration, the expected long-term return on plan assels and the discount rate used W convert
future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying

assumptions,
511 Revenue recognition
5011 Advances
Advances disbursed by SME Bank Limited:

Markup/interest on performing advances is recognized on a time proportion basis over the term of
loan and advances. Markup/interest/penal markup recoverable on non performing advances is
recognized on receipt basis. Mark-up/interest on rescheduled/restructured advances and

investments is recognised as permitied by the regulations of the SBP.

5.11.2 Heturn on invesimenis

Return on investments is recognized on a time proportion basis except on classified investment
which is recognized on receipt basis. Any premium paid or discount received on purchase of
securities is amortized through unconsolidated profit and loss sccount over the remaining period

of maturity on lime apportionment basis.
F
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5.11.3

5114

5.12

3.13

315

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

Interesi, fee, brokerage and commission

Interest, fee, brokerage and commission, profit on other investments, bank deposits and staff
loans is recognized on accrual basis. Income on non-funded facilities (fee, commission,
documentation charges ete.) is recognized on receipt basis except commission on bank guarantees
which is recognized on accrual basis.

OIT setting

Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated
statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset are capitalized. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period in which it incurs.

Provizions

Provisions are recorded when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
pust events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation,
Provision for guarantee claims and other off balance sheet obligations is recognized when
imimated and reasonable certainty exists to scttle the obligations. Expected recoveries are
recognized by debiting customer accounts, Charge to unconsclidated profit and loss account is
stated net of expected recoveries.

Financial assets and liabilities

All financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset 15 derecognised where (a)
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or (b) the Bank has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either
(i) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii} the Bank has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial
assets and financial liabilities is taken to income currently,
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.16

Segment reporting

A segment is the distinguishable component of the Bank that is subject to risks and rewards that
are different from those of other segments. A business segment is one that is engaged either in
providing certain products or services, whereas a geographical segment is one engaged in
providing products and services within a particular economic environment. Segment information
is presented as per the Bank's functional structure and the guidance of the State Bank of Pakistan.
‘The Bank's primary format of reporting is based on business segments:

5.16.1 Business segments

Trading and sales
This segment undertakes the Bank's treasury, money market and capital market activities.
Commercial banking

It includes loans, deposits and other transactions with individuals/staft, small and medium
enlerprises and corporate custiomers,

5.16.2 Geographical segments

517

5.18

i
6.1

“I'he Bank operates only in Pakistan,
Appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves (except appropriation required by law) after the balance
sheet date are recognized as liability in the Bank's financial statement in the year in which these

are approved,
IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement'

It consolidates the guidance on how to measure fair value into one comprehensive standard, It
introduces the use of an exact price, as well as extensive disclosure requirements, particularly the
inglusion of non financial instruments into the fur value hierarchy, The application of [FRS 13
does not have an impact on the unconsolidated financial statements of the Company except for
certain disclosures as mentioned in note 37,

FINANCIAL RESTRUCTURING AND GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION
Current status of privatization of SME Bank

Crovermment of Pakistan (GoP) decided in their meeting held on November 19, 2018 to relaunch
the privatization transaction of the Bank through Privatization Commission (PC). Cabinet
Committee on Privatization (CCoP) approved the new privatization program of the Bank on
March 06, 2019 to divest the GoPs equity stake in the Bank along with management control 1o a
strategic investor. Thereafter through a due process mvitation for expression of interest for
acquisition of 93,88% shares of the Bank were advertised in newspapers on December j,éjju 19,
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6.2

The last date for submission of Eols and Statement of Qualifications (SoQs) was February 28,
2020, Five prospective investors have submitted their SO0)s against the advertisement, out of that
four have been cleared by SBP. The final draft of share purchase agreement (SPA) had been
shared with three pre-gualified bidders. A joint meeting of the Transaction Committee, SBP and
pre-qualified bidders held on December 29th, 2020 and December 30th, 2020 with reference 1o
"Pre-Bid Conference” and "Valuation Model" wherein the queries of pre-qualified potential
bidders were clarified and some of them pertaining to license, merger and MCR were forwarded
o State Bank of Pakistan for its clarification. Drafts of the hidding documents i.e. instruction 1o
Bidders (ITB) and Share Purchase Agreements (SPA) could not be finalized. Board of
Privatization Commission in its mecting held on November 25, 2021 recommended to delist
SME Bank Limited from the list of privatization on recommendation of Financial Adviser (FA)
of Privatization Commission, who had asserted that despite all efforts and iterative interactions
with the pre-qualified bidders to date, positive feedback from the pre- qualified bidders was not
forthcoming and owing to the deteriorating financial position of the Bank, the transaction of
privatization of SME Bank was recommended to shelve, The recommendation of the Board of
Privatization was presented to Cabinet Committee on Privatization {CCoP') in its meeting held on
December 31, 2021, The CCoP discussed delisting of SME Bank Limited from the active
privatization program. The meeting, after a detailed discussion constituted a committee under the
chairmanship of the Finance Minister (FM) and representatives from SBP, SECP, Finance
Division and Privatization Division to evaluate allemative options for proceeding lurther.
Meetings of the Sub-Commitiee of CCoP* were held on March 08, 2022, on July (4, 2022 and on
Deeember 02, 2022 on Restructuring and Way Forward for SME Bank Limited. FM observed in
the meeting held on December 02, 2022 that it could not be privatized when its financial
condition was not that poor and now with its negative equity and other adverse indicators, there
would be no potential buyer. It was decided that meeting of CCoP may also be held next week to
delist SME from Privatization Programme list. The Cabinet Committee on Privatization (CCoP
meeting was held on December 26, 2022, wherein summary dated December 24, 2022 submitted
by the Ministry of Privatization regarding “privatization of SME Bank Limited”, and CCol
approved the recommendation of the PC Board, regarding delisting of SME Bank from
privatization programme, to enable Finance Division and SBP 1o proceed further in the matier.
CCoP in its meeting held on December 26, 2022 approved delisting of SME Bank from
Privatization List and subsequent to year end, Cabinet in its meeting held on March 17, 2023
approved Winding Down Plan for SME Bank as a Way Forward.

Going concern assumption and minimum capital requirement

During the current period, the Bank had incurred a net loss of Rs. 1,249,876 million (2021: Rs.
942.421 million), resulting in the accumulated losses of Rs. 7,963.685 million (2021: Rs.
6,846,330 million). As of December 31, 2022, the reporting date, the total liabilities of the Bank
had exceeded its total assets by Rs. 5,364.831 million (2021: Rs. 4,260,976 million), indicating
the complete erosion of the Bank's equity. This indicated the Bank's inadequate capacity to ensure

ﬁ_,
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timely repayvments. Due to cash inadequacy, the Bank was unable 1o meet the statutory solvency
requirements of a minimum capital (MCR) of Rs. 10,000 million and a Capital Adequacy Ratio
(CAR) of 10%. As a result of continued stressed financial conditions, the Bank’s credit rating had
fallen from B negative (single B-) to CCC. Based on the operational results, the Staie Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) had granted exemption from meeting the MCR and CAR up 1o December 31,
2019, or restructuring/privatization, whichever came earlier. This exemption was subject 1o the
submission of a concrete plan from the Ministry of Finance (MoF) 1o provide a firm commitment
to inject the required amount of capital funds into the Bank if privatization did not materialize by
March 31, 2020. These conditions indicated the existence of material uncertainty that cast
significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, it might not
have been able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the ordinary course of business.
To address this situation, the Government of Pakistan (GoP), being the majority shareholder with
93,88% shareholding in the Bank, initiated the process of privatization, The MoF, through its
letter No. F.3(27IF-1IL2005-185 dated February 26, 2020, informed SBP that the privatization
process was likely to be completed within three to four months and requested an extension of the
relaxation of regulatory requirements until June 30, 2020. Subsequently, the Bank, in its latest
letter No. SMEBL: HO: CFO & CS: 09:2022/1940/5762 dated September 30, 2022, requested
SBP 1o allow exemption from MCR until June 30, 2023, or until the privatization of the Bank,
whichever came earlier. The MoF and the management of the Bank were hopeful of a favorable
response as SBP had not objected to the non-compliance of MCR., Furthermore, the process of
privatization of the Bank had been described in Note 6.1 above. However, based on the support
from the MoF, the management of the Bank believed that the use of the going concern
assumption in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements was appropriate.
Therefore, they prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. Subsequent to year
end, in response to SOS call of the President / CEO, which given vide letter No. SMEB: HO:
P&CEO: 23/13 dated March 15, 2023 Government of Pakistan extended supports of 5,557 hillion
for making payments of deposits. On March 27, 2023 the SBP vide letter No. BPFRD (R & FDY
SME/ 2023/ 2443 informed that the funds amounting of Rs. 5.537 billion approved by
Government of Pakistan had been credited imo bank account of SME Bank Limited maintained
with SBP. The CCoP in its meeting held on December 26, 2022 approved delisting of SME Bank
from Privatization List and subsequent to year end, Cabinet in its meeting held on March 17,
2023 approved Winding Down Plan for SME Bank as a Way Forward. Under the Plan monthly
losses of the bank has dropped down to Rs. 75.651 in April, 2023 from average monthly losses of
Rs, 153,957 million that was in first quarter of 2023. Based upon being public sector bank, which
more than 93% shares are owned by Government of Pakistan and support of Mo, the
management of the bank believes that the use of going concern assumption in preparation of these
unconsolidated financial statements is appropriate and, therefore the same have been prepared on
a going concern basis, ﬂ“"
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2022 2021
1. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Mote {Rupees in "000)
In hand
Local currency 157,277 146,066
With State Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current accounts 7.1 419,842 SB4,003
With National Bank of Pakistan in:
Local currency current accounts 11,839 94,767
Prize bonds 278 18
H09,.236 824 944

7.1 Deposits with the State Bank of Pakistan are maintained to comply with the statutory requirements
issied from time Lo time,

- 2022 2021
8. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS Note (Rupees in "000}
In Pakistan:
Om current accounts S00 500
On deposit accounts 10,807 12,237
Provigion for doubtful balance with a bank B.1 { 10, 00M0 ( 10,000)
1,307 2,737

8.1 Particulars of provision for doubtful placement with a bank

Opening balance { 14,0040} {10,000
Charge for the year = =
Feversals - -
Closing balance (LRI { 10,0040}

Provision for doubtful balance is in respect of deposit of Rs. 10 million (December 31, 2021: Rs, 10
million) with Indus Bank Limited which is under liguidation.

A
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9.

LN |

%12

INVESTMENTS

Inviestment by type

Available-for-sale securities

Federal Governmeni Securilies
Shares
Mutunl Funcs

Held-to-maturify securitics

Mo Government Debl Securilics

- Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs)

- Certificates of Investments (CO08)

Subsidiary
Total Investmenid

Moo

2.1

2.1

LN )

TDR of B 2.6 million (2021: Rs. 35 million) was under lien at perod end.

SME Leasing Limited (SMEL)

Hobfing Percenfape

Country

Totu| assets

Total lmbilitics

Total Revenue

Tmal Expenses

Profi(loss) after taxation

Total comprehensive profit{loss)

A

2022 2021
ey e
tmt‘ f Frovision Surptis) | Chrrviis Cost Provision Surphus / Carrying
Asoritxod e (Deficit) value st R (Deficit) vilue
cost diminution cost diminution
{ Hapees in "000) [ Rupees in 'D00)
1022874 - {18817 3,920,993 4,106,322 . (15,522 4,090,800
41,542 {15,863} 3119 29,898 42,542 {15,563) 2,941 29,620
1,870 (218} (61} 1,051 1,870 (218} (105) 1,547
3967286 {16,081} TIT 3951942 4,150,734 (16,081} (12.686) 4,121,967
2,614 - - R 15,000 - . 35,000
762 {762) - - T6 {762) * =
3,362 {T62) - 2,600 35,76 {762} - 35,000
215457 (134,709) . 80,748 215457  (134,709) - B0, 748
4,186,105  [(151,552) 737 4,035,290 4400953  (151,552) (12,686) 4237,715
2022 2021
T3 14% T3, 4%
Pakistan Pakistan
Rupees im 008
334,840 146 546
326,917 140,011
20,998 21,394
72,456 62,550
. 1,301 (13,399)
1,388 {13,025)
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SME Leasing Limited (SMEL) was incorporated on Juby 12, 2002 as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, Upto the vear 20035,
SMEL was o wholly owned subsidinry of the Bank, however, a public offering of 10 million ordinary shares was made during the year 2006 at an offer price of Rs.
|1 per share, The Bank subscribed for 1405205 shares in SMEL and now holds 73.14% shares in SMEL. SMEL is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. This
investment is designated 15 a Strategic Investment’ in terms of BPD Circular Letter Mo, 146 dated August 1, 2006, SMEL continue o operate on & net loss basis and
the Bank muintains proviston of Bs. 134.709 million (2021 Rs. 134,709 million) against the aforésaid investment of Bs. 215.457 millton.

2.2 Investment by segment: 2022 20210
Cost / Provision 3 Cost Provision =
Amartized for ?;;ﬂ:i:}'r c;,';?::: Amorineed fior ?ﬁ?{:rﬁ: . :r:-';'::g
Cost diminuiion Cist diminution
{Rupees in "IHHE) {Rupees in "000)
Federal Government Secaritics
Market Trensury Bills (M13s) 39212,.874 - (1,ES1) 3,920,993 3,704 057 - (6,845) 3697212
Pakistan [nvestment Bonds (P1Es) = = = = 402 263 ($.677) 393 588
3911874 - (18R} 3,920,993 4,106,323 (15.522) 4000800
Shares
Listed companies 14,999 (14,790) 31219 3428 14,990 (14,790) 2,941 3,150
Vnlisted companies 17541 (1,073 - 16,470 27.543 {1,073% - 26ATH
42,542 (15,B63) 3219 19.B98 42,542 (15.863) 2041 29620
Mutual Funds
Cipzn end 1116 - {393) B3 1214 - (13) 1203
Close end - Listed 654 {218) (208) I8 634 (218} {92} 3
15T {218) {6l ) 1,051 1.870 {218) (105} 1,347
Mon Government Debt Secarities
= Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 2604 - - 2,600 15,000 15,000
= Certificates of Investments (COls) Thl (762) - = Thl (762) -
3342 (762) . 1,600 15,762 (762} 15,000
Suhsidinry
SME Leasing Limited 215457 (134,704 - RO, T4H 215457 (134,704 - R0,74%
Total Investment 4,186,105 (151,552) 73T 4035290 4,401,953  (151,552) (12,686) 4,237.71%
9.2.1  Investment given as collaferal 2822 2021
MNole (Rupees in "Dibd)
Murket Treasury Bills (MTHs) 9.21.1 3382447 2,705,670
Pakistan Investment Bonds (P1Bs) - 9.2.1.1 - 393,584
1382447 3099258

9.2.1.1 These represent market value of securities ot reporting date.

A
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2022 2021
9.3  Provision for diminution in value of investments {Rupees in "044)
Opening balance 151,552 151,241
Charge / reversals
Charge for the vear - 311
Reversal for the vear & -
Reversal on disposals - s
- all
Transfers - net - .
Amaount written ofT - -
Closing balance 151,552 151,552
9.3.1 Particulars of provision against debt securities
Category of classification
2022 2021
Domestic NPI | Provision NPI |  Provision
{ Rupees '000)
Onher assets especially mentioned - - - -
Substandard - - - .
Doubttul - - - -
Loss 762 T62 762 762
Ta2 Thl 762 762
9.4  Quality of Available-for-sale Securities 2022 2021
Cost/ Amortised cost |
Dietails regarding quality of Available for Sale securities are as follows: {Rupees "000)
Federal Government Securities - Government guaranteed
Market Treasury Bill . 3922874 3,704,057
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 402,265
3922874 4 106,322
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Shares 2022 2021
| Cost |
Listed Companies (Rupees "000)
= Chemicals 810 El10
- Investment banks/companies 13,236 13,236
- Synthetic and Rayon 336 336
= Technology and communication 587 5R7
= Textule composite in 30
14,999 14,5999
2022 2021
Unlisted / delisted Companies Cost | Breakup value Clost | Breakup value
Naote (Rupees "000)
- ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 9.4.1 18,000 51,984 18.000 50,890
- LSE Financial Services Limited 041 8,440 16,4007 B.440 20,534
- News-v/s Credit Information Services (Pvt) Limited. 100 30 11 30
- Companies delisted from stock exchange 942 1,003 - 1,003 -
27,543 69,421 27,543 71,454

9.4.1 Break up value per share is based on the latest available audited financial statements of investees.

A
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9.4.2 Particulars of investments in shares of companies delisted from stock exchange and are currently under liquidation was as under;

9.5

- Mohib Exports Company Limited

- Sunflow Citrus Limited

- Tawakal Garments Company Limited
- Tristar Shipping Lines Limited

= £ahoor Textile Mills Limited

Mutual Funds
- HBL investment fund - Class A
- HBL investment fund - Class B

Particulars relating to Held to Maturity securities are as follows:

Non Government Debt Securities

Unlisted

= A+Al
- Unrated
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Number of
shares held

Cost/Paid-up
value per

Total paid up

va
skiane lue

{Rupees "0040)

4,600 23.81 109
10, 000 4.22 422
4,000 3838 154
5,000 23.56 118
15,200 13.16 200
= 1,003
2022 2021
Cost

{Rupees "000)
654 054
1216 1.216
1.870 | 870
2,600 35, (MM}
762 762
3362 . 35,762
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For the vear ended December 31, 2023

1.2

Performing Mon Performing Tatal
ADVANCES 2022 | 202 Wz | 2021 T I T
MNote [ Rarpees in (04}
Lioans, cash eredits, nomning finances, ete.
Extended by:
Defunct RDIC & SAFC 1! = - 4877191 A.BRO.TTA A BTT, 1M A REO.TT3
SME Bank Ltd LZ17811 1,441,444 179,762 438,245 1397673 LETa 69
Dug from employees 41,351 49,040 5.0k 1027 47317 56,567
1,259,262 1,490 484 52,919 5326545 6,322,181 6,817 430
Net investment i finance lease 0.3 280 IR0 L rE 573 1.253 1,253
Advances - gross 1,259,542 1,490, 66 & 063 802 5317 014 6323434 6,818,684
Provizion for non-performing sdvamees
Specific - | - | (4,903832) (5221619 (4,993.832) (5221619
Cemseral {29 { BB} - - (29) LEEY
1.5 __{1%) (BB4) (4993 R32)  (5.221.619)  (4,993.861)  (5222.503)
Advances - net of proviskon 1,259,513 1. 48% 882 il (o [, 200 139,573 1,596,151
Includes met investment in finsnce lease as disclosed below:
22 021
. later than one Later thon one
hut:.::::" and less than || Owver five years Total mmhﬂm inel less than [{ver five years Tuatal
? five vears five years
(Rupees in (W0}
Lease rentals receivable 73 - - b JE] L - 973
Residual value 50 - - 180 180 - - IR0
Minimim lease payments 1253 a 1,253 1253 - 2 1253
Financind charges for
future periods - - - - - - - -
Presznt valwe of minimum
|ease payments 1,253 - - - 1,253 1,253 - - 1253
22 21
Particulars of sdvanees [Gross) (Rupees in "000)
In lecal currency * 6,323,434 6,818 684
In foreign currencies - -
6,323,434 6818 684
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SME BANK LIMITED
Notes fo the Uncossolidsied Financial Statements
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

103 Assignment of Non-Performing Loan (NFL) porifolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC {0 Maticnal Bank of Pakistan (NBF)

The Board through it resolutien by circular Mo, 10/cire/33 dated March 08, 2010 duly endorsed by the members in their mecting dated May 20, 20010 has approvesd (he
tramsfer and nssignment of fully non-performing loan portfolios of defunct SBFC & RDFC to NBP on the basss of deferred transfer price. Subsequently transfer and
assignment agreement was exccuied between the Bank and National Bank of Pakistan o hamchi on July 01, 2010 (Effective date), According to the agreement, the
transferor { SME) and the acquirer (NBP) scknowledge, declare and confirm the transfer, assignment and vesting of all rights, inlsrests, privileges, title, powers and remedses
mn favor of the acquirer with reapect io:

a) the non-performing boans, collateral and the debiors;

b all agreements, deeds, instruments and other documents relating to the non-performing loans, debtors and collateral and to whiich the transferor i, or legally deemed 10 be,
o party or o beneficiany;

c)all legal proceedings by and against the transferor with respect to the non-performing Joans, the debtors and collateral, which may be pending before amy court. tribunal,
arbitrator or authority, without being subject to any Habilities of the transferor (o any perso.

The agreed transfer price was amount equal 1o 50% of met recoverics.

Under the above referred arrangements, portfolio of defunct SBFC & RDFC outstanding s on June 30, 2010 (Except outstanding loans of RDFC where facility of Equity
Participation Fund hai also been extended) were transferred 1o NEP,

On regquest of the Bank's mansgement tve decision o transfer and assignment of the portfodio was revisied by te BoD in fis 65th meeting held on Tuly 13, 2011 and resolved
that the apreement of assignment of the old partflio 1o NBP should be cancelled and Boand's pronouncement for revocation of agreement 1o Ministry of Finance o ammange
retrieval restoration of old portfolio 10 the Bank in the interest of recovery of public funds.

In the meeting held on March 04, 2013 the Board of Directors reconsidered the position taken earlier on this matter on grounds of related oo of recovery and infrastructure

on request of then management and decided that since the Bank is still on the privatizstion list, BoD would be able 1o decide on pontfolio afier Bank's delisting from
privatization.

The incumbent management has again reviewed the situation and noted that no comparstive analysic’study pertaining to transfer of portfolio was conducted which could
justify the decision of assigning old portfolio 1o NBP,

In view of the above, foregoing Board was requested in its 83rd meeting. held on August 30, 2014 and the management of the Bank was allowed 10 proceed further in
pursuance of resolution | direction passed regarding the subject matter in 64th and 65th Meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 16, 2011 and July 13, 2011
respectively by overnaling to verdict of the Board of Directors given on the issue in 75th Meeting of Board of Directors held on March 04, 2013,

Cabinet Committes on Privatization (CCOP) in ity meeting held on January 27, 2017 has approved the transaction structure of the Rank’s privatization. The transaction
structure has excluded the above portfolios from the privatization transaction and the CCOP in above referred meeting has directed the Bank to transfer the said portfolios 1o
NEP and that all recoveries made by NBP from the loan portfolio shall be deposited in the Federnl Consolidated Fund (FCF), a related party ac being managed by Ministry of
Finange (MoF},
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SME BANK LIMITEDR
Maves do the Unconsalidated Flnancial Statements
For the yvear ended December 3, 2022

Pursunnt o shove, being directed by MoF the management of the Bank has obined an independent fegal advice for defining the legal procedures for the implementation of
the requirement of MoF. The legal advice propoesed that the Bank may vin o wi-party povation agreement between SME, MBP and Gol* through Mol transfer and surmender
any rights, ohligations and leabilities on the remaining receivable assets in the loan porifalio to FOF against any consideration amount. The Novation agrecment will Feriher
allow for any recoveries made by MBP in relation o the loan portfolio to be deposited directly in FCF as the recoveries will no longer be an asset of the Bank.

In line with the steps proposed by the legal sdvisor the board of directors of the Bank in its mesting held on December 31, 2017 has approved the transfer of non-performing
lean pontfidios of defunct SBFC & RDFC w MoF and NBP via a tn party novation agreement between SME, NBP and Gol® through Mot at o valwe of Rs, 100 a5 a sale
consideration. Thereafier, the sharcholders of the Bank m their meeting held on January 22, 2018 through their specinl resolution hove also suthorized the transfer of the
portfclies as approved by the board of directors of the Bank, however, the Allied Bark Limited casrying 0.33% holding in the Bank has opposed the resolation and required
the sale of the portfolio ot a fair market value (FMY ), According to above majority decision of the shareholders both the porifolios hove been trnsierred 1o the FCF and NBP
apainst an agpregate sale consideration of Bs. |00 under a tri-party agreement (the Agreement) executed on Februany 23, 2008 between the Bank, KBP and FCF. Az of the

date of the iri-party Agreement the Bank has transferred and surrendered all the recoveries, rights, obligation, claims and liahilities of the referred loan portfolios in favor of
the FCF.

The management of the Bank continses 10 show these boan portfolios in its book of scoounts pending confirmation of recording by NBP in its books of accounts o ensure
thot the sbove loans are duly accounted by NBP in complionce 1o the terms of the agreement dated Feb 23, 2013, The Bank has requested with various intervals o share the
details of the road map prepared by MBP for smooth transfer of accounting record related to the legacy loan portfolio from books of the Bank 10 books of NIP,

e
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Motes to the Unconsolideted Finnncial Statements
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0.4 Advances inchode Ry, 5063892 million (2021: Rs,
status as detailed bebvw:

Categoiy of Clissification
Mote
Domestie
Oiher Assets Especinlly Mentioned
Substandard
Dhooabsifuel
Liss
I4.1

5317.018 million) which have been placed under non-performing

2022 2021
M Non
Performing | Provislon || Performing | Provision
Lians Loans
{Rupees in '000)
319 - 5474 -
2ATY ilg 7593 -
10,944 13,097 14
5047281 4993704 3300 554 532 603
5,063,892 49938317 5327918 5221619

10.4.1 This include non performing beans and provision of Rs; 179.762 million and Rs: 123,286 million respectively (2021 Rs.

438.245 million & Ha. 331,959 million) relating 1o SME portfolio.

L5 Particulars of provision against advances
1011 2021
Specific  General Total Specific General Toaal
Mobe (Rupees in "000)
Opening balance 5221619 BE4 5222503 3232728 8,593 5241318
« Charge/| Reverwl)
Charge for the period/year 10.5.1 14,613 || 15 14,638 23,582 2 23,604
Rieversal for the period/year {55, 140) (580} i i, D20 [H.EDI]" (7.731) {41,932}
{40,52T) (855) (41382  (1LETS) (7. 70 (18.328)
Adnounts writlen off - . = - - -
Amounts charged off 10.5.2 & 40.1.6 {TH3,693) b (183,693} i : i
Reversal of provision of transfermed portfolio (3.567) - {3,567) (487) . {48 7)
Closing balance 4,993,832 29 4,993,861 5221619 BR4 5207 S0

ML3.1 General provision has been recorded al the rmte of 1% (2021: 1%) of unsecured performing small emterprises portfalio.
Provision approximates b 4.5% of covid affecied bormowers who availed SBP enabled deferment os at December 31, 2020 has

reversed.,

1133 This represent charged off SME pontfolio in default for the Inst 10 vears & above had 100% provision, BoD) approved in i
I 16ith meeting held on March 05, 2022, Charged off these lonns does not means cessation of the Bank's right to recover its
money from borrowers through litigation or any other way. As af reporting date smount of charged off principal is Bs. 180,489

million afber recovery of Rs. 3204 million.

10,53 The FSY benefit availed in kst years has been decreased by Ra. 29.089 million, which has resulted increase in chorge for
specific provision for the period by the same amourt. The FSV benefil is oot available for cosh or siock dividend | bonus 1o
employees. Had this reduction in FSY benefit not recognized, loss before and after tax for the year would have been decreased
by Ra. 20088 million (2021 decreased by Rs, 26,540 million). As of the current reporting date the effect of FSV benelit tnken
agabnsy provision s aggregated o Bs, 59861 million (2021: Rs. 88.950 millioa),

2021 M2l
154 Particulirs of provislons agnlnst advanees  Speeific General Totsl Specifle Cleiveral Toal
{Rupees in "000)
In loenl currency 4,903,832 19 4003861 5221619 BH4 5222503
I foreipn currenches - - - - 5 =
4,003,832 F1] 40093 001 5321619 BRd 5333503
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I Particalars of Write 01T 2011 2021
(Rupees in "008)
10.6.0 Apninst provisions - .

Diireetly charged 1o Profit £ Loss ageouni =

T2 Wribe Offs of Rs. 500,000 and sbove . .
Write Of1s of below Fa. 500,000

17T Details of Loan YWrite 00T of Ra, 300,000 and abave
In nerms of sub-section{3) of Section 33A of the Banking Companbes Ordinance, 1962 the Statement in respect of written-off

loans or any other financinl relief of rpees five hundred thousand or above allowed to & personds) during the vear ended
December 31, 2022 is given ot Annexure-1,

y. N
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11.  FIXED ASSETS 01l M|
Mate {Huapees in 'O
Praperty and exuipment 1.1 (FRET I1,5%6
Ripht of use asseis 1.2 J6E 9T 412,684
JR03N0 424,240
il
Building Furnitur Electrical
Frechold | Leaselolid i Lease hald office and
1L Properiy and Equipmest Lisid Luod | Proshold [tmmrovement ;I:::. computes Viehicles | Tatal
Land equipment
{Rupees OB}
At January 0], 2022
Lot - A5 15600 38,991 8377 IBRETY 26TI0 195,007
Accumulated deprectation - - 12.545 38,858} 936 176037 26.TId 263 AL
Med boak valie - 450 j055 [EL] kil T4 - 11554
Year ended December 2012
Oipening net book vakue - 450 3058 138 ElL T - 11556
Addithons - - - 20k 1T 6,0 - 1257
Disposals - - - . = = . .
[eprociation charge - - { TR0} (31} {86) (3,552) - (4475}
(osing net book value " 450 1278 247 131 11,230 - 14,384
Al December 31, 2022
Cosl - ASh 1540 420 B78E ITRTIR %004 256,137
Accumulaied depreciation/ impaimmeni - - 13,325 28.182 B653 164,543 17008 241,793
Met boak vatue - 450 1178 147 132 11,230 : 1434
Hate of depreciation (perceniage) - - ] 3353 20 15 & 3315 20 -
2021
Bluaibding Furni Electrical
Frechold | Lensehobd ai Lease hold Tmlm alfiee and Vehicles Tatal
Lnnad L.ansd Frechold | mprovemem Bt CcompaileT
Land e L Pl
(Hupevs DO
Ad Jamoary 00, 2021
Cosl - &5 5,600 18,8 P36 IBO2ST 1E. 56 255 (3
Accumulated deprecistion - - 11,763 IR, 730 D250 16E.2E0  REIIR 266,143
Met boak value - 430 1 R3S 1346 S 11,973 450 10,940
Year ended December 2021
Crpendng net book valug 454k 1 B35 136 G 114973 450 16,946
Additicns - - 115 3 1626 37K
Chisposils - - - - - - (27h {27
Depreciation charge - . ( TR (123 (36} {7, 75T) {423} {9,139
Closing net book valos . 454 1053 13% 71 7.842 - 11,556
At December 31, 2021
Cipsl . 450 1% 600 38,591 2377 [R3AT 26,700 275007
Accumulated depreciation/impalrment - 12,545 38551 306 17607 MG TI0 263451
el ook value A5 1,05% 138 Tl 7842 11,556
Taie of deprecingion | percentage]) = 3 33.33 M 15& 3333 ] *
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11.2  Right of use assets

Cripening net book value
Additions

Depreciation

Closing net book value

2022

2021

(Rupees in "D00)

412,684 455,244
7,102 12,805

(53,810) {55,365)

365,976 412,684

11.3  Cost of fully depreciated assets that are still in use was Rs, 214.649 million (2021: Rs. 239472

million),

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

* At January 1,
Cost
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Net book value

Year ended December 31,
Opening net book value
Additions:

- developed internally

- directly purchased

Disposals
Amortization charge
Closing net book value

As December 31,

Cost

Accumulated amortization and impairment
Met book value

Rate of amortization (percentage)
Useful life

2022 2021
Computer Computer
software software

{Rupees in "0

33,335 32,558
31,880 30,802
1,455 1,756
1,435 1,736
130 T
230 T
906 1,078
TS 1,455
33,488 33,335
32,709 31,880
779 1,455
3333 3333
3 vears 3 years

12.1 Cost of fully amortized intangible assets that are still in use was Rs. 30.710 million (2021: Rs.

30,561 million}.
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13

131

132

BEFERRED TAX ASSET - NET 2022 2021
MNote {Rupees in "000)

Deferred tax assef arising in respect of:

Unabsorbed depreciation and amortization 50,748 55,008

Unased tax losses 1,876,729 923,201
13.1 1,165,977 1.ooe, 1546

Deferred tux (lHability) / asset arising in respect of:

Surplus on revaliation of invesiment (916} (993}

Remeasurement of defined benefit plan - .
13.2 1,163,061 1008206

The Bank has recognized the deferred tax asset which represents management®s best estimate of the probable benefits expected 1o be realized in future yvears in the

form of reduced ax lability as the Bank would bo able 1o set ofT the profits earmed in those years agninst losses carried forward, The underlying sssumption for
recopnilian of deferred tax assel w the expected privatization of the Bank which would resull in Tresh equity injection from the new stmiegic shareholder of the
Bank and, in view of sbhove, the management of the Bank believes that it is probable that the Bank will be able to schieve the profits and, conseguently, the
deferred tax assets will be Tully realized in future, The Cabinet Commilttég on Priviatization [CCOP meeting was held on December 26, 2022, wherein summary
dated December 24, 2022 submitted by Ministry of Privatization regarding “privatization of SME Bank Limited™ and approved the recommendation of PC Board,
in its meeting held on Movember 25, 2022 regarding delisting of SME Bank from privatization programme, to-cnable Finance Division and SBP 1o proceed further
in the matter.

Heconeiliation of deferred fax 2021 1022
Balance Reconmized Recopnized  Balunce at Balance Recopnized Recognized Balance at
at January 1, in profit and i Degember 51, ot Janoary 1, in profit and in December 31,
loss account QcCl liss accouni OCl
(Rupees in "0404)
Deferred tax asset arising in respect of:
Accelerated fax depreciation &
Ao ation B2.155 3,843 - B398 #5,998 3,250 . RO248
Uniezed tax losses ROE AR 114,713 - 933201 93310 153,528 - 1,076,729
BAM) 643 118,556 - I M2, 199 1,0WF, 199 156,778 - 1,165,977
Deferred tax liahility arising in respect
-
Surplus on revalustion of investment (1.392) > 399 (F93) (903} - i) (16}
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (§4.336) £ 14,336 = " . - .
Deferred tax (lability Vasset - met BT4.915 118,556 14,735 I (M1 20 LS. 20 156,778 77 LI6S 061
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14.

t4.1

142

4.3

2022 2021
OTHER ASSETS MNote {(Rupees in "000))
Ineome/mark-up scerued in local currency - net of provision 14.1 & 41.1.6 70,019 84,185
Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 19,569 20,295
Advance taxation - net 14.2 231,211 236,293
Mon banking asset acquired in satisfaction of claims 14.3 147,066 147,066
Due from benevolent fund- unsecured K487 8,085
Receivahle from NBP 4,956 3,971
Receivable from subsidiary company H.548 4,252
Receivable from Equity Participation Fund 4,146 3,017
Trading right entitlement certificate 21,560 21,560
Receivable from Speedway Fondmetall Pakistan Limited 19,640 19,640
Receivable against factorized portfolio 5,14% 5.148
Others 42,147 76,656

580,527 630,768
Less: Provision held against other assets 14.4 83,815 117,919
Other assets (net of provision) 496,712 512,849

The balance has been arrived at after adjusting interest in suspense of Rs. 3,876.982 million (2021: Rs.
4,041.059 million) which includes Rs: 83,253 million (2021: Rs. 247449 million) relating o SME pori fistio.

This includes the effect of refunds aggregating to Rs. 232.599 million (2021; Rs. 232.599 million) due from
government. In respect of tax years 2003 and 2004 the tax authorities disallowed the Bank's claims for
provisions for bad debts and SBP's share in profits of the Bank. Subsequently, the Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue (ATIR) through its order dated February 10, 2011 has ruled in favor of the Bank which results in
creation of refunds of Rs. 80,059 million and Rs. 152.54 million for tax years 2003 and 2004 respectively.
Thereafter, against the referred judgement of ATIR the tax authorities filed references before the Islamabad
High Court which was fixed on January 11, 2021, However, subsequent to year end, the Islamabad High Court
has decided in the favour of Bank through its judgement dated March 28, 2023,

This include Rs. 138.6 million (December 31, 2021: Rs. 138.6 million) being the successful bid made by SME
Bank for acquiring Bungalow No. 45, Block-C/3, Gulberg 111, Lahore (the property) mortgaged with the Bank
as o security in a defaulied loan and Rs. 8.47 million pertaining stamps/stamps duties for regisiration of sale
certificate issued by the High Court to SME Bank/Auction Purchaser of the Property. The auction was carried
out on 30 June 2015 and subsequently the Honorable Lahore High Court through its decision dated 14 July
2015 allowed the Bank to adjust the bid price against its outstanding dues from the borrower against the
finance facilities extended to the borrower, suspended mark-up and cost of funds. Thereafter the auction was
also confirmed by the High Court on April 19, 2016 after hearing objection raised by the counter party. The
sale certificate was issued by the High Court on June 30, 2016 and the same has been registered with
concerned registrar on July 28, 2016, On November 24, 2016, ownership of the Property in the record of
Excise and Taxation Department has been transferred in name of SME Bank Lud. The Bank applied for
possession of the acquired Property, which has been accepied by the court after hearing both the parties. Cn
June 24, 2019, the sponsor of the case died and thereafier on August 20, 2019, the legal heirs of the judgement
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debtor submitted an objection petition for release of the property which was wmed down by the court
Mennwhile, the legal heirs also approached High Court and submitted a Civil Miscellaneous Application
{CMA) for restoration of RFA 635/13 which had been already decided ex-party in favor of the Bank. The same
was also dismissed by the Hon'ble Lahore High Court, Lahore vide Order dated February 28, 2022,
Consequently, the main file retumed back from the Hon'ble Lehore High Court, Lahore to Banking Court
wherehy execution proceedings restored on March 12, 2022, The learned Judge Banking Court while giving
equal opportunities to the opponent counsel adjoumed the matter for arguments many times and fnally after
hearing arguments advanced by the Counsel of the Bank apropos to compliance of warrant of passession
passed Order dated September 14, 2022 with the direction to concerned authorities to get the possession and
handover the property in question to decree holder Bank under intimation to the Court. However, due 1o non-
availability of Police force to the bailiff, the possession of the said Property could not be handed over to the
Bank so far. As per latest valuation report dated November 11, 2022 the market value of the Property was Rs.

296.113 million.

144 Provision held against other asseis

Advances, deposits, advance rent & other prepayments
Recetvable from Speedway Fondmetall Pakistan Limited
Recevable against factorized porifolio

iher receivables - SME Porifolio

Legnl charges recovernble from borrowers - SBFC & RDFC
Trading right entitlement certificate - TREC

Others.

14.4.1 Movement In provision held against other assets

Opening balance
Charge for the perind
Reversals for the period

Transferred 10 NBP
Amount charged of T
Closing balance

Page - 31

41.1.6

2022 2021
{ Rupees o "0
4477 4,477
19,640 19,640
5,145 5,148
10,228 44,326
22,653 22,659
21,560 21,560
104 [ Lh)
H3i,815 117,919
117,519 117,334
2,746 3.891]
(8,051 (3.326)
{5,305) 563
(5) =
(25,794) -
RiBIS 117919
M
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2022 2021
15. BILLS PAYABLE Note (Rupees in "000)
In Pakistan J4.5M 19,071
Crutside Pakistan - -

34,591 19,071
——— e

16, BORROWINGS

Secured
Borrowing from State Bank of Pakistan
Under Financing facility for storage of agriculural produce 16.2 97810 67,981
Under Modernisation of small and medium enterprises 16.2 33,831 39,310
131,641 107,291
Repurchase agreement borrowings
State Bank of Pakistan 16.3 3.367,714 3,098 998
Financial Institutions 16.3 - =
3,367,714 3,098,998
- & Es Z
334‘:'-"9'1.35"5 3,206,280
16.1 Particulars of borrowings with respect to Currencies
In local currency 3,499 3585 3,206,289

In foreign currencics

3,499,355 3,2‘]6.;.139‘

16,2 These are secured against demand promissory note and carry mark up rate of 2.0% per annum payable on
quarterly basis and having maturity period upto 7 years.

16.3 These represent transactions with financial institutions for sale of Government Securities under re-
purchase agreement (REPO) in the inter bank money market at mark-up rates ranging from 16.24% o
17.00% (2021; 10.00% to 10.15%) per annum maturity period upto three months (2021: for period upto
three months), REPO transactions are secured against investment of the Bank in Government securities.

Fon

Fage - 32



17. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2022 2021
In Local |In Foreign Total In Local IrE Foreign Total
Currency | Currency Currency | Currency
{Rupees in "(H11)
Customers
Current deposits 1,212,304 - 1,212,304 || 1,394,107 - 1,394,107
Savings deposits 3,707,884 - 3,707,884 || 3.911,666 - 3,911,666
Term deposits 1. 768,090 - 2,768,090 || 2.163.357 - 2,163,357
Others 80,941 - 80,941 141,070 - 141,070
7,769,219 - 7,769.219 7.610,204 - T7.610,200
Financial Institutions
Current deposits 19 - 19 441 - 441
Savings deposits 635,950 - 635,950 370,330 - 570,330
Term deposits 67,300 - 67,300 67,300 67,3(M)
Others - - - - - -
703,269 - 703,269 638,071 - 638,071
8,471,488 - BAT2488  B248.271 B.248.271
—— ——
) 2022 2021
17.1 Compaosition of deposits (Rupees in "000)
Individuals 2,640,623 1,794 810
CGovernment (Federal and Provincial) Biod 005 TE4.859
Public Sector Entities 36,242 58119
Banking Companies . -
Non-Banking Financial Institutions 703,269 63E.071
Private Sector 4,228.349 4972412
8,472,488 B.248.271
e T EE

17.2 Total deposits include eligible deposits of Rs. 2,777.833 million (2021: Rs. 3,290.516 million) as
required by the Deposit Protection Corporation’s {a subsidiary of SBP) Circular No, 4 of 2018 dated June

22, 2018,

i
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Note 2022 2021
(Rupees in "000)
18. OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up/ return/ interest payable in local currency 207,044 08,484
Unearned commission on guarantees 6,203 3.840
Acerued expenscs 16,754 14,513
Sundry creditors 18.1 131,783 132,585
Branch adjustment account 2,054 1,548

Payable against emplovees' benefit plans
Defined benefit pension 358,708 500,705
Defined benefit funded gratuity scheme 11,866 7.362
Unfunded compensated absences 82,186 67410
Security deposits against lease 280 280
Leased liability against right of use assets 18.2 516,856 337,163
Employees' VS8 payments withheld 12,076 12,076
. Income tax withheld payable 19,098 18,049
Cithers 1,757 1.655

1,376,665 1,395,672

181 This includes Rs. 90.615 million {2021: Rs. 90.615 million) payable 1o SBP/MoF representing the
lefiover funds after settlement of VS8S-2009 pavments and amount of siale bills payable Rs, 30.799
million (2021: Rs, 31.027 million).

2022 2021
{Rupees in "00M))

18.2 This represents lease liability under IFRS 16

Opening net book value 537,165 541,078
- Additions/adjustment 7,102 12,805
- Interest 67,851 69,183
- Payment (85,262) (85,901)
Closing net book value 526,856 537,165
H_
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19. SHARE CAPITAL
19.1 Authorized Capital

2022 202§
MNumber of Shares

1, (M 000, (M) 1,000,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

19.2 Issuved, subscribed and paid up capital

022 2021 Ordinary shares
Number of Shares
152,853,153 152,853,153 Fully paid in cash
S0, 0000, () A0,000.000  Issued as bonus shares

36,397,547 36,397,547 Issued for consideration other than cash
239,250, 7040 _?_3-9,!51],71][3

2022 2021
(Hupees in "OHI)
100, 43 DD L 0, 000, 0600
2022 2021
(Rupees in "4
1,518,532 [,528,532
0D, 00D S0, D0
363,975 363,975

2,392,507 2,392,507

MNumber of Percentage 2022 2021
19.3 Break-up of share capital is as follows: shares (%) {Rupees in "000)
Ll
Federal Government 224615978 03,80 2,246,160 2,246,160
Mationnl Bank of Pakistan 6,121,005 1.56 61,211 61,211
United Bank Limited 3,975,413 1.66 39,750 39,750
Hahib Bank Limited 1,987,501 0.83 19.875 19,875
MCB Bank Limited 1,490,619 .62 14,906 14,906
Allied Bank Limited 774,351 032 7,744 T.744
Industrial Development Bank Limited 286,146 0.12 2,861 2,861
[Mrectors L - - -
= 239,250,704 {110] o 2,392,507 2,392 507
20. SURPLUSADEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS 2021 2021
Node (Rupees in "000)
Surplusf{deficit) on revaluation of
Available-for-sale securities
- Federal Government securilies 2.1 (1,581} {15,522
« Listed companies/mutual funds 1,618 2,836
T [ 12.686)
Deferred tax on surplusd deficit) on revaluation af
Available-for-sale securitics
= Federal Government securtlics - .
« Listed companies/mutual funds (916} (993
5]'?9]- {13,679]
M
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21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
- (juarantees
- Commitments
- (ther contingent liabilities
1.1 Cruarantecs
Financial guarantees

Performance guarantees
(Mher guarantees

21.1.1

MNote
21.1

21.2
213

21.1.1

2022 2021
(Rupees in "000)
260,245 338,508
3,557,269 3,316,589
1.180.,924 1,170,700
4@93,433 4 825,597
160,245 138 308

92.941 million) for which formalities for return of original documents are in process,

21,2 " Commitments
Commitments in respect of:
- [orward government securities transactions

- forward lending

Commitments for acquisition of:
- operating fixed asscis

{(ther commitments

21.2.1
Sale and repurchase agreements
21.2.2 Commitments in respect of forward lending

Lndrawn facilities
Commitments to extend credit

21.2.3  (ther commitments

Hills for collection

Pavable in Pakistan
Page - 36

Note

21.2.1
2122

21.23

2021

This include expired letter of guarantees/performance aggregating to Rs. 60.358 million (2021: Rs

2021

" (Rupees in '000)

Commitments in respect of forward government securitics transactions

3382447 3,099 258
157,292 215,662
17,435 |.669
05 -

3,557.26 3,316,589
3.382.447 3,099,253
140,292 142,562
17, (MM 73,100
157,292 215.662
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21.3

Other contingent liabilities

i)

b)

d)

Claims not acknowledged as debt from various borrowers of
defunct RDFC.

Tax demands of Rs. 612.707 million raised by the Income Tax
Authorities related to VSS staff cost (tax year-2005) which has
been decided in favor of the Bank, However tax authorities have
filed appeal before ATIR against the decision of the Commissioner
Income Tax (Appeals) which is pending adjudication, The
management of the Bank strongly believes and expects favorable
outcome and therefore no provision has been made for these effect
in the unconsolidated financial statements.

The Bank and the income tax department have filed cross appeals
against the appellate order of the Commissioner (Appeals), who
had partly set aside the order of the taxation officer, resulting in
taxable income of Rs. 151,234 million and tax lisbility of Rs
52,932 {pavable amounting Rs. 6.163 million after adjustment of
credit for taxes paid’ suffered ot source amounting Rs. 46.768
million) against the declared tax loss of Rs. 23 489 thousand and
tax liability of Rs. 4249 million for the tax year 2008, Without
prejudice to the appeal, the Bank has offered adjustment of said
demand against refunds available for tax year 2009. However no
provision has been made in these unconsolidated financial
statemenis as the management is confident of a favorable outcome,

The taxation officer created aggregate demand of Rs.53.674
million for withheld amount of Rs.17.598 million from WSS
payment of employees lor the Tax Years 2003-2004 -2005-2006-
2008-2005-2010-201 1-201 3 which was not deposited upon advice
of the legal advisor due to stay order of Supreme Court of
Pakistan. The case is pending before Appellate Tribunal Infand
Revenue and the provision of default surcharge Rs. 36.076 million
was not made ipso facto,
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e)

B)

h

DCIR raised tax demand for the tax vear 2010 for Rs, 211.716
million which was again amended to Rs. 198, 528,541/~ vide Order
# 11/40 doted 22-May-2013 w's 221, stay against from Islamabad
High Court was obtained and also appeal was filed with CIRA-II
who partly accepied the Bank's plea in the case and remanded it
back to DCIR for verification of evidences and opportunity of
hearing the Bank for cenain issues vide his order in Appeal #
GAHE2013 dated 07-Jan-2014. Parallel to thai Bank has filed 2nd
appeal in ATIR on 27-Feb-2014 and rectification application was
also submitted with CIRA on 24-Feb-2014 no decision has been
made yet. The tax department has also filed an appeal with the
ATIR through Commissioner {Legal) vide their letter & 249 dated
7-Mar-2014. Based on the facts revealed by the consultants vide
letter # IT/1156/2015 dated March 03, 2015, the management
strongly believes for favorable outcome in the case and therefore
no provision in this respect has been recorded in  these
unconselidated financial statements.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTL, Islamabad created demand for
Rs. 21.171 million for tax year 2016 under section 161/205 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. After rejection of the first appeal by
CIRA the Bank has submitted second appeal before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue along with stay application to keep the
recovery proceedings in abevance. The referred second appeal has
not yet been fixed for hearing.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad issued an order u's
1617205 for the tax year 2013, The Bank filed an appeal before the
Commissioner (Appeals), who has remanded the case back to
assessing officer, notice 1o fresh proceeding have been replied no
further action on the response.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad issued an order w's
161/205 for the tax year 2017 without serving proper notices, An
appeal apainst this impugned order has been filed before the
Commissioner (Appeals), which is pending for fixation. Without
prejudice, the tax department has been requested to adjust the tax
demand with the available income tax refunds.

A
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il

i

ki

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad made an assessment
for the year 2001-2002 vide order dated June 20, 2005 of Rs.
590.667 million and a tax demand of Rs. 118.721 million which
was contested in ATIR which ordered the appeal in Bank's favor
vide Order no. ITA No.857/1B2006 dated April 05, 2007, Tax
department has filed income tax reference with the lslamabad
High Court having no. LT.R. 48 of 2007,

Sales Demands of Rs. 0.791 million and Rs. 17.098 million were
created for the year 2008 & 2010 respectively during proceedings
of sales audit. Against the said demands advance payments of Rs.
0.299 million and Rs, 3.743 million respectively were made to
avail stay against recovery of entire amount. Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue has remanded both cases back to  the
Commissioner for fresh proceedings, which have not been
mittated vet. Furthermore, sales demands amounting Rs. 1.708
million & Rs. 1045 million were ereated for the year 2009 and
2012 respectively during proceedings of sales audit. Against the
said demands advance payments of Rs. 0.577 million & Rs.1.043
million respectively were made to avail stay against recovery of
entire amount, Both appeals are pending before Appellate Tribunal
Infand Revenue for fixation of hearing. The management strongly
believes for favorable outcome in the said cases.

The Officer Inland Revenue, LTU, Islamabad demand of Rs.
16.939 million for the tax vear 2016 under section 122(54) of the
Income tax Ordinance, 2001. An appeal is pending before
Commissicner (Appeals). Meanwhile stay is also granted in the
instant case (o keep the recovery proceedings in abeyance.

Back benefits and claims of staflfemployees under litigation.

Page - 39

2022 2021
(Rupees in '000)

118,721 118,721
20,452 30,807
16,939 -

A



SME BANK LIMITED
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

22, MARK-UPF/ RETURN/ INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to Customers
Extended by:
Defunct RDFC & SBFC
SME Bank Limited

Emplovees
Financial Institution - SME Leasing Limited - a subsidiary
company

On investments in
Available for sale secunities
Held to maturity securities

On deposits with linancial institutions
Lendings to financial institutions

23, MARK-UP/ RETURN/ INTEREST EXPENSED

On deposits

On securities sold under repurchase apreements
On SBP Refinance Scheme

Brokerage and commission

Bank charges

24. FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees
Card related fees

Credit related fees
Commission on guaranices
Commission on remittances
Others
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2022

2021

{Rupees in "000)

283,731

227933
283,731 227,933
2,231 1,883
22,725 16,860
308,687 246,685
474,224 159,318
850 2,280
475,074 361,598
268 124
401 1,185
784,430 609,592
765,329 453,488
459,333 260,511
2,329 2,038
1,491 1,468
142 i
1,228,624 T17.637
3,022 1,095
484 427
1,299 2473
8414 7.937
39 65
24 12
328 TA009
L
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25,

e
L
B

GAIN /{LOSS) ON SECURITIES

Realised
Unrealised - held for trading

Federal Government Securities - nel
OTHER INCOME
Giain on sale of operating fixed assets - net

Fee on fund managed by the Bank -EPF
Others
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25.1 (2,839) 925
) s
!3.33'}} 925
9328 1,159
974 974
- 36
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7,

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense

Property expense

Rent & taxes

Insurance

Litilities cost

Security {including guards)
Repair & maintenance
Depreciation

Others

Information technology expenses
Soflware mamlenance

Hardware mainienance
Depreciation

Amaortization

Metwaork charges

(Mthers

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees, allowances and other expenses
Legal and professional charges
Dutsourced sarvices cosls

I'ravelling and convevance

NIFT clearing charges

Depreciation

Training & development

Postage & courier charges
Communications

Stationery and printing

Marketing, advertisement & publicity
Donations

Auditors’ remuneration

Separations cost

Vehicle running and maintenance
Entertainment

Subseription, books and newspapers
Dreposits premium

CHhers
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272 & 33.1

27.3

2022 2021

{ Rupees in "0040)
714,649 695,478
7.756 4. BR6
1,343 3 H2
13,926 23,635
25,545 18,330
T.363 6,752
54,590 56,147
131,523 113,462
5542 6,517
1,695 1,970
1,199 2818
06 1,078
15,855 13,758
563 224
26,760 26,365
3,349 4,315
8,510 6,062
29,364 25,079
2,442 2,942
3,047 2,424
2500 £.540
D43 0959
721 736
4,536 4,477
6,388 5,435
1.857 |, 460
1.093 1,126
- |,38G
6610 4,683
1,576 2,224
3.551 3,049
5,265 3,784
Y69 186
83,722 76,049
956,654 911,354

A




SME BANK LIMITED

MNotes o the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2022

27.1 Total compensation expense

Managerial Remuneration
- Fixed
- Varishle
Cash award

Charge for defined benefit plans
= pension fund and gratuity
- funded gratuity scheme
- unfunded compensated absences
Contribution to defined contribution plan -
benevaolent fund
Rent & houwss mamenance
Utilities
Medical
Convevance
Telephone
Uniform allowance
Child education allowance
Giroup insurance
Owvertime
Adhoc relief
Leave absence
Leave fare assistance
Rental in hew of vehaele
Reimbursement of vehicle running & maintenance
Staft welfare benefits

Note

34.8.1
4.8
34.8.1

332

2022 2041

(Rupees in "000)

292,742 296,399
189 308
110,143 100,098
11.801 11,220
17,480 28,496
555 (2,722)
95,305 96, 840
29,796 30,023
43,185 43,825
14.169 15,257
3,916 3,865
1,065 1,269
6,305 6,611
2.137 1,622
1,654 1,564
16,547 1,421
5363 7,232
13,159 13,508
6,609 6,591
41,796 28,472
733 3,582
T14.649 605,478

27.2 Total cost for the vear included in other operating expenses relating to outsourced activities is Rs 29,364
million (2021: Rs 25.079 million) related 1o companies incorporated in Pakistan. Material oulsourcing
arrangements include the services of messengers, drivers and electronic financial transaction (EFT).

27.3 Auditors' remunecration

Audit fec
Fee for other statutory certifications
Fee for audit of employees funds
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920
115
58

928
116

-
-—
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1022 2021

(Rupees in "000)
28. OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan 5 .

Right of use assets - unwinding of present value 674851 69,1 K3
67 856 69,183

29. PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions for diminution in value of investment = 3l
Reversals against loans & advances (41,382) i18,328)
{Reversals) / Provisions against other assets (5.305) 563

Baid debts written off directly -

t-iﬁ.ﬁﬂ'-"! (17,452}
ik
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30. TAXATION 2022 2021
Note (Rupees in "000)
Cuirrent 30.2 10,004 9530
Prior years 30.3 {1,58%) -
Deferred (156,778) (118,556)
(148,353} (109.026)

30,1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss

Loss before tax (1,398,229) (1,051.447)
Applicable tax rate 5% 35%

Tax on loss {489 380} (368.006)
Deeferred tax asset recognised during the vear (156,778) (118.556)
Tax effect of income taxed at lower rate 3 53
Minimum tax 10,011 9477
Other permanent differences 487,791 368,006
) (148.353) (109,026)

300.2 Provision for current year tax expense is charged on minimum tax rate of 1.25% of the tumover due to
tux losses of the Bank for the vear ended December 31, 2022,

303 This represents the effect which reconciles the halance of advance tax with the tax position of the Bank as
per tax retumns pertaining to years/ tax vear 2021-2022,

31, BASIC/ DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 2022 2021
(Rupees im "(HHI)
Net loss after tax for the year 51.249.3'3'&] {942,421)
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 239,250,700 239,250,700
Rupees
Basic/ diluted loss per share 5.22 (3.94)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earning per share of the Bank.

A
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32, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

EER

Cash and balances with treasury banks

Balances with other banks

2022 2021
STAFF STRENGTH Numbers
Permanent 147 151
On contract 161 184
308 135
Average number of emplovees
Permanent 149 157
On contract 173 190
. 322 347
———
In addition to the above, 113 (2021 ; 113) employees of outsourcing services companies were assigned to
the Bank,
A
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2022 2021
MNole (Rupees in "000)
7 609,236 824,544
8 1,307 £, 057
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34 DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
M General deseription

The Bank operates the following schemes for all its eligible employees. Contributions are made in accordance with the actuarial recommendations.
34.1.1 Pension and Gratoity Fund (defined benefit scheme)

The scheme entitles the members to:

- Gratuity pavable to members who have completed a minimum of 5 vears of service and 1otal service on retirement or cessation of service or death is
les% than 10 vears.

Pension payable to members who have completed o minimum of 10 years of service with the Bank on retirement of age of sixty years or on
completion of 25 yvears of service with the Bank or on pérmanent disability or on death during service.

3.2 Gratwity Fund (Defined benefit scheme)
- The Bank operates a defined benefit funded gratuity scheme for afl eligible employess.
34.1.3 Unfunded compensated absences

- The Bank provides compensated absences, an unfunded scheme, as per entitlement 1o all its permanent employees,

22 20210
342  Number of Employees under the scheme { Numbers )
The number of emplovees covered under the following defined benefit schemes are:
Pension fund 147 151
Ciratuity fund - 161 [84
- Compensated absences 147 E5l

A
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4.3

344

3.5

Principal actuarial assomptions

The actuarial valuations were carmied out as &t December 31, 2022 asing the following significant assumplions;

Valuation discount rate - per annum
Salaries increase rate - per annum
Expected return on plan assets - per annum
Pension indexation rate - per annum
Mormal retirement age (NRA)

Mortality rate

Withdrawal rate

Effective salary increase timing

Reconciliation of {receivable from) / payable to defined benefit plans

Present value of obligations
Pavable to outgoing employees
Fair value of plan asseis
Pavable to defined benefi plans

Movement in defined benefit obligations

Obligations at the beginning of the year
Currenl service cosl

Interest cost

Benefit paid by the Bank

Past service cosi

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Oligations at the end of the year

2022 2021
14.50% 12.25%
12.50% 10.25%
14.50% 12.25%
0.00% §.25%
of) years 60 years

SLIC 200105 SLIC 2001-035
Maoderate Maoderate

Jannary 1st, 2023 January [s1, 2022

2022 2021
Compensated : L Compensated
Pension fund Gratuity fund Frm Pension fund Cirmtuity fund [l
(Rupees "W
1,956,951 135,495 K1 186 1874, 581 122202 67410
: 2,990 2 2 = =
{1,598,243) (126,619) - {1,373.876) (114,930) i
358,708 11,866 R1 186 500,705 7.362 67410
1,874,581 122,292 6T AL 1,622,825 111679 8,328
55,858 11,698 h, 358 (5,454 11,343 3,130
126814 14,195 8092 61,310 10,812 5,496
(46,083) (11,567) (2,704) (98,129) {12,388) (29.414)
(154,219) 1,867 30340 123,121 846 (8,1300
1,956,951 138,485 BRI 186 1,874,581 122,292 G710
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346

34.7

M.E

381

Movement in fair value of plan assets

Fair value at the beginning of the vear
Expected return on plan assets
Contribution to the fund

Benefits paid during the year

Actuarial loss

Fair value a1 the end of the year

Movement in net liability under defined benefit schemes

Opening balance

Charge { {reversal) for the year
Re-measurement {gain) / loss
recognised in OCI during the year
Contribution/benefit paid by the Bank

Closing balance

Charge for defined benefit plans
Cost recognized in profit and loss

Current service cost
Met interest on defined benefit asset/liability

Past service cosi

Actuarial loss ( (gain) recognised - profit and loss

2 2021
Pension fund Gratuity fund Compensated Pension fund Giratuily Fund Compeisated
absences ahsences
(Rupees "W}

1,373,874 114,930 - 1,284 832 106,846 -
172,529 14,092 - [ 26,666 10,935 -
115,129 11,787 - 89,907 12,713 2
(46,083) (11,567) - (98, 129) (12,388) -
{17,208} {2,623) - (29 400) {3.176) E

1,598,243 126,619 - l.ETiiﬂTﬁ [ 14,930 s
200,705 T.362 67410 337,903 4 B33 nR 128
111143 11,801 17,480 100,198 11220 28. 4%

(137.011) 4,490 - 152 521 4 022 -
(115,129 (11,787) {2,704) [R'?,iHJ?} {15.?1 1) {?."_:L#Hj
J58. 708 11,866 81,186 500,05 7.362 67410
55,858 11,698 6,358 5,454 11,343 31,130
54,185 103 B.002 34,644 (123) 5496
- - 3030 - - (8,130)
110,143 . 11.801 17,480 10 15EE 11,220 28,496
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2022 2021
Pension fund Gratuity fund Compansated Pemsion fund Ciratuany [Lind Compensated
absences absences
34.8.2 Re-measurements recognised in OC] (Rupees "000)
Experience adjustment
- (Ciain) / loss on obligation (154,21%) 1,867 3,030 123,121 LET £130
- {jain on plan assets 17,208 2,623 - 29,400 3,176 -
- Actuarial gain recognised - profit and loss - - (3.030) - - (8,130}
Total re-measurements loss / (gain)
recognised in OC] {137,011) _-1,-191] - 152,521 4,022 -
2022 2021
349 Components of plan asseis Pension fund  Gratuity fund Pension fund Gratuity fund
{ R prees. "M
Cash and cash equivalents 17911 1,505 17.152 2.338
Term Deposits Receipts (TDRs) 1,580,332 125,114 1,356,724 112,592
1,598,243 126,619 1.373.876 114,930
— e —

.10 Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is performed by changing only one assumption at 4 time while keeping the other assumptions constant. Sensitivity analysis of
discount rate and salary increase rate is presented in the below tables:

2012 2021
Peasion fund f’:.’:::i'“' E“:h";:im Pension fund  Gratuity fund lmm
(Rupees '000)

Current hability 1,956,951 135,495 82,186 1,874,581 122,292 67410
| % increase in discount rate 1,783,256 125,457 79392 | 690,746 111,517 64,589
| % decrease in discount rate 2,164 405 146,828 5,158 2,054,660 134,634 0,433
1% increase in expected rate of salary increase 2,020,652 147,586 RB5.548 1,949 383 135,362 70,778
1% decrease in expected rate of salary increase 1,596, 3% 124,645 TH981 1.803 941 110,736 64,222

1 Year Monality age set back 1,962 850 135,408 - 1,909,037 122,389 -

1 Year Mortality age set forward 1,951,350 135,582 - 1,842,793 122,193 e =
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3411 Expected charge for the next financial year

The Bank contributes to the pension and gratuity funds according to the actuary’s advice.

Pension fund  Gratuity fund CT;“L‘”
{Rupees "M}
Expected charge for the next financial year 104,237 12,747 17936
34.12  Maturity profile
2022 20
The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years) 9.30 10.42

3413 Funding policy

The Bank endeavors to ensure that liabilities under the various employee benefit schemes are covered by the Fund on any valuation date having regards
o the various actuarial assumptions such as projected future salary increase, cxpected future contributions to the fund, projected increase in linbility
associated with future service and the projected investment income of the Fund.

3414  Risks associnted with defined benefit plans
Investment Risks:
The risk arises when the actual performance of the investments is lower than expectation and thus creating a shortfall in the funding ohjectives.
Longevity Risks:
The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan level over the entire retiree population.
Salary lncrease Risk:

The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk anses when the actual increases are higher than
expectation and impacts the liability sccordingly.

#—
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M5

.16

Withdrawal Risk:

The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the sctuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The movement of the lability can go

either way.

Mortality Risks

The risk that the actual monality experience is different. The effect depends on the beneliciaries’ service ! age distribution and the benefits,

Disclosure for current and previous four annual years of Pension

2012 2021 2020 2019 2018
Deficit position (Rupees in "000)
Present value of obligation 1,956,951 1,874,581 1,622 825 .484 477 1,403,002
Fair value of plan assets (1,598.243)  (1,373,876) {1,284 832) (1,114,322) (1,014,038)
Net defined benefit linbility 358,708 S, 705 337,993 370,155 388,974
A ] " B
Experience adjustments
Remeasurement ( gain)loss on obligation (154,219) 123,121 (47.678) { 145,06%9) 7,146
Remeasurement loss on plan asset 17,208 26 400 [6.810 31,642 18,231
Other comprehensive income (137,011} 152521 { EI},SEEE (113,427) 25377
Disclosure for current and previous four annual years of Gratuity
2022 2021 2020 2009 2018
Deficit position {Rupees in "000)
Present value of obligation 138,485 122,292 111,679 102,736 o0 898
Fair value of plan sssels (126,619} (114,930) {106, B46) (B8,564) (B0, 168)
Net defined benefit liability 11,866 7,362 4,833 14,172 10,730
Experience adjustiments <
Remeasurement loss/{gain) on obligation 1,867 846 (8.036) (7437) {1,675)
Remeasurement loss/{gain) on plan asset 1,623 3,176 (2.036) 2,627 2052
Oiher comprehensive income 4,490 4,022 {10,092) {4,810} ¥l
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s, Benevolent Fund (defined benefit plan)

35.1 General description

The Bank also operates s contributory benevolent fund for all its eligible employees (defined benefit scheme). Contributions to this fund were made
equally by the Bank and employees 1ill March 2002, Thereafter it is wholly contributed by the Bank at the rate of 2% of basic salary with a ceiling of Rs.
200 per month per employee. Annual contribution towards the defined benefit scheme are made on the basis of actuarial advice using the Projected Unit

Credit Method,
1022 2021
(MTicers Sialf Officers
5 ;
Beaevoleint  Benevolent Tutal Benevolent mﬂ“::i:;imlum Total
Fund Fund Fund
(Rupees "000) {Rupees 'H00)

352  Actuarial liability for sctive employees 16,619 3424 20,043 14,354 1,919 16,273
Actuarial liability for beneficiaries 1,625 460 2,085 2,732 318 3,050
Total actuarial liability 18,244 3,884 22,128 17,086 2237 19,323
Fair value of plan asseis (24,581) {6.034) (30,615) (22.226) (5,782) (28,008}
Funding sarplus (6,337) (2,150) (8,487) (5.140) (3,545) {B,685)
Assel recognized in balance sheet 6337 {2,150} 53£rt (5,140 (3.545) ! B.683)
The amount recognized in the profit and loss
gocotint 15 o follows:

Expense for the year (906) 1,461 555 (1,169) (1,553} (2,722
!Wﬁ! - 1,461 855 (1,169) [1.,553) {2, T22)
153 Break-up of category of assets 2022 2021
{Rupees "000)

Cash and cash equivalents s 369 715

Term Deposits Receipts (TDRs) 30,246 27,293

MIL615 28,008
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354

35,5

5.6

Semsitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis is performed by changing only one sssumption at a time while keeping the other assumplions constant. Sensitivity analysis of
discount rate and salary increase rate is presented in the below tables:

2022 2021
(Rupees "000)  (Rupees 000)
Current linbility H:.'l 28 19,323
I% increase in discount raie 21,108 18,594
1% decrease in discount rate 23,230 20,103
1% increase in expected rate of salary increase 22,128 19,323
1% decrease in expected rate of salary increase 22,128 19,323

Risks assoctaied with defined coniribufion plan
Longevity risks:

The risk arises when the actaal lifetime of retirees is longer than expeciation. This risk is measured at the plan level over the entire refiree population.

Salary increase risk:

The most commaon type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary, The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than
expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal risk:

The nisk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go
either way.

2022 2021

Maturity profile

The weighted avernge duration of the obligation (in years) .50 11].41_
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3. COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

3o Total Compensaiion Expense

2022 2021
| Tawr President / H'm.' President / .
bemes Exccutives CEO Execcutives | Execufives CEO Executives
[ireciors Direciors ;
{Rupees "M}

Fees and allowances ete, 1,925 - - 2,506 -
Managerial remuneration

i) Fixed = £402 F43,6%) - 4,500 124, B84

i1} Total varisble = - 101 - - &0
Charge for defined benefit plan - 1,282 521828 - 1,388 41,021
Rent & howse maintenance = 2071 35401 -~ 2475 35,449
Litlities - 1,063 13,690 - K04 12,473
Medical - Bl 13,123 - 675 12,284
Ciomveyance - - 1,467 - - 1,575
Motor car running & maintenunce - - 42,150 - 27,363
LEuve fare assistance Lo 11,160 156 10,752
Club membership . - . . 937 -
Others 1424 1,791 10,831 | RIS 1,325 12,173
Total 3,349 14,228 324,541 4,315 12,860 278074
Mumber of Persons [ i T8 & I 71

Executives mean employees, other than the chief executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds twelve hundred

thousand rupees in a inancial vear,

J6.2 Remuneration paid to directors for participation in board snd commitiee meetings

Page - 55

2022
Meeting fees and sllowances paid
Fur Board Commitiees
:: Name of Director For Board | Board Risk " —— Board
L Meetings |  Awdit | Management | Resource | Procorement|  Total
Commitiee| Commitiee |Commitiee| Committee
[Rupees in "D}
I [Mr. Muhammad Wogas F{1L]] 10 - A0 350
2 |Mr. Baufl Ahmad 260 - - 150 =] M
3 |Mr, Enamullah Khan 200 1] - 150 - 44}
4 [Mr, Hashim Raea 150 Al - S0 20
5 |Mr. Omar Faroog 1m0 5 =0 - - 115
& |Mr. Wagar Uddin Siddiqui 20 160 - - - 200
Total amount paid 1, 4K50 215 200 oo 156 1,925
. -
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2021

Meeting fees and allowances paid
& For Board Commitiees
Hn; Name of Director For Board Board Rizk Human Board
' Meetings | Audit | Management | Resource |Remuneration|  Total
Committee | Commines | Comumittes | Cosumities
(Fupees in '000)

I |Mr. Mubammad Wogas 340 - 100 - 25 425
2 |Mir. Rauf Ahmad L 30 - 104} 23 473
3 |Mr. Enamullah Khan ELLY] 73 - ) - 475
4 |Mr, Hashim Raza k1] - 1080 - 25 424
5 |Mr, Omar Faroog ELLY 10D 10K - - 300
6 [Mr, Wagar Uddin Siddiqui 150 &0 . . - 20
Total simvount paid 1,650 118 A paift] 15 2,500

36,3 The President'CED was also provided with free use of Bank's owned and maintained car in accordance with their terms
of employment.

&ﬁ.,..
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b

7.1

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, 15 based on quoted market price, Quoted securitics classified as
held to maturity are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is
determined on the basis of break-up value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial slatements.

The fair value of fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient relisbility
due to the absence of a current and active market for these assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments,

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

- [mvestments
Covernment securities (T bills and PIBs)
Ordinary shares of listed companies/Mutual funds
Ordinary shares of unlisted companies

Financial assets not measured at fauir value
- Bank balances with treasury banks

- Balances with other banks

- Lending to financial institutions

- Advances

= (ther assets

-Other Investment (COITDR)

- Subsidiary
SME Leasing Limited

2821
FAIR YALUE
carrying /
Level | Level 2 Level 3 notional Total
value
Note {Rupees in "000)
- 1,920,993 - - 3,920,993
4,479 - - - 4,479
2 - - 26,470 -
372 - - - 451,681 451,681
372 - - - 1,307 1,307
372 - - - . r
372 - - . 1,329,573 1,329,573
iz - - - 87,948 87.948
32 2,600 2,600
- = - = 50,748 ﬂl].."H-H.
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2021
FAIR VALUE
carrying /
Level | Lievel 2 Lewvel 3 notional Toal
value

On balance sheet financial instruments Note (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
- [Avestments

Government Securities (T bills and PIBs) - 4 090, Kb - - 4,090,800

Ordinary shares of listed companiesMutual funds 4,697 - - - 4,697

Ordinary shares of unlisted companies - - - 26,470 -
Financial assets not measured at fair value
- Bank balances with treasury banks 372 - - - 678, 860 G778, 860
- Balances with other banks 372 - - - 2737 2,737
- Lending to financial institutions 172 : & . . .
- Adwvances 372 = - . [.506, 181 1,556,181
= Oither assels 312 = - - 08077 Q8077
~Other Investment (COVTDR) 312 - - - 35,000 35,000
Subsidiary- SME Leasing Limited - - - 80,743 80,748

—— ——

The bank measures fair values using the following fair values hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements.

Level 1; Fair value measurement using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are ohservable for asset or liability, either
directly (L.c. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. denived from prices).
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Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the assets and liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

372 The Bank has not disclosed the fair value for these financial assets and liabilities, as these are for short term and or re-priced over short term.
Therefore their carrying amounis are reasonable approximation ol fair value.

37.3 The Bank’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date, the event or change in circumstances,
that caused the transfer oceurred, There were no transfers between level | and level 2 during the year,

37.4 Valuation technigues and inputs used in determination of fair values within level 1:

Fully paid-up ordinary shares Fair values of investments in listed equity securities are valued on the basis

of closing quoted market prices available at the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in determination of fair values within level 2;

Pakistan Investment Bonds / Market Treasury Bills Fair values of Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills are derived

using the PKRV rates (Reuters page).

A
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38. SEGMENT INFORMATION
J38.1 Segment details with respect to business activities

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

December 31, 2022
Trading & Commercial
- Total
Sales Banking
{Rupees in "000)

Profit and Loss
MNet mark-up/return/profit 475476 308,954 784,430
Inter segment revenue - net - 26,467 96,467
Won mark-up/retum/interest income 204 23,584 23,788
Total income 475,680 429, M5 204,685
Segment direct expenses 483,216 1,769.918 1,253,134
Inter segment expenses allocation 96,467 - 96,467
Total expenses 579.683 1,769,918 2,349,601
Provisions - (46,687) (46,687)
Loss before tax { 1014,003) (1,294,226) (1,398,229)
Balance Sheet
Cash & bank balances 429 864 180,679 610,543
Investments 4,035,290 - 4,035,290
Met inter segment lending - 2861 829 2861829
Lending 1o financial institutions - - -
Advances - Performing - 1.259.513 1,259,513

- Mon-performing - 70,060 T0,060
(Hhiers 538,428 1,204,434 2,042 862
Total Assets 5,303,582 5,576,515 10,880,097
Borrowings 337714 131.641 3,499,355
Deposits & other accounts - B ATIARE B 471488
Met inter segment borrowing 2,861,829 - 2,861,829
Others 3649889 1,041,367 1,411.256
Total Liabilities 6,599,432 964549 16,244,928
Equity {1.295.850) (4.068,981) (5,364,831)
Total Equity & linbilities 5303,582 5.576,515 10,880,097

e
Contingencies & Commitments 3 382,447 1,615,991 4,998,438
—
-
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Profit and Loss

Net mark-up/return/profit

Inter segment revenue - net

Non mark-up/return/interest income
Total income

Segment direct expenses
Imter segment expenses allocation
Total expenses

Provizsions
Loss before tax

Balance Sheet

Cash & Bank balances
Investments
Met inter segment lending
Lending to financial institutions
Advances - Performing

- Non-performing
Chhers
Total Assets

Borrowings

Deposits & other accounts
MNet inter segment borrowing
Others

Total Liabilities

Equity

Total Equity & liabilities

Contingencies & Commitments

December 31, 2021

Trading & Commercial Total
Sales Banking
{Rupees in '000)
362,784 246,808 609,592
- 146,147 146,147
3,505 16,178 19,683
360, 289 409,133 Ti5.422
282,640 1,415,534 1,698,174
146,147 - 146,147
428,787 1,415,534 1.844,321
311 (17,763) (17,452)
(B2.309) {DBB.638) i1,051,447)
584,101 243580 B27.681
4237715 - 4,237,715
2088 831 2088831
- 1.48% 882 | 489 882
; 106,299 106,299
754.044 1,192,706 1,546,750
= 5.575.860 5,121,298 10,697,158
3,008,908 107,291 3.206.289
- £.248.271 8.248,271
2,088,831 - 2,088,831
425,361 989,382 414,743
5,613,190 0,344,944 14,958,134
(37.330)  (4,223.646)  (4.260.976)
5.575.860 5. 121.298 [0.697.158
3,009,258 1,726,339 4,825,597
o
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Assumptions wsed;

- Unallocatable assets representing 10.74% (December 31, 2021: 9.02%) of the gross assets have been
allocated 1o segments based on their respective incomes.

- Unallocatable liabilities representing 4.52% (December 31, 2021: 5.64%) of the gross liabilities have
been allocated to segments based on their respective incomes,

38.2 Segment details with respect to geographical locations

Presently the Bank does not deal outside Pakistan.

e

Page - 62



SSE BANK LIMITED
Saies in e Unioosalidated Femancial Siatrosrnits
For ihe venr ended Devember 10, 2022

3. HELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Teink bis tolued party mletionsiap with S majonty ssarmheider (Giversment of Puiivan ) scbaidiary, dircbersCED, key mansgemen persoancl, EFF asd sall reirement enclit plars

Hanking iranssctoes with iolied panses si2 camied o in the noemal course of busimes o ageeed term Ceniribition & wd secrimly i ngapect of sl reticement beme (it plan am sade in actnidascs with acsuarial
valumtions (refer nose 4 & 35 {0 these uncomsolidesed financisl statememy for. the detadls of plan) Compensmion of Directoes TEC ducloued in note 38 10 these uncomobdaied financsal statements are defermined in

sccordance with 1emma ol their appoarements.

Deinils of hefances oulntanding o vesr end snd rensaciions weth relind pertics as = follivey

1y Eximaenis

Cipgming Balincs

Emveaimént misle doeing the year

Invesimeat rdeemed | disposed. of dwring 1he yeai
Transier m | | owl)- m

Clising balance

Prowissisn for drmimirtion in value of invesbmenis

Advamrrs

Chpening Balance

Addaion {10g] dzbils) during ibe yem
Repaid (ol credies) dunmg tha vear
Transier i ! ot} - e

Ckeesrneg hadanee

Prerwision hehl sgainm advances

Lrher Assens

Esterast | mask-up aod repd
Bosrvahle Mm@l ielirzmess fund
[Nhei mosrvahis

Tirpaadts and otk dornin
Cipening balnnce

Received dunmg the e
Withdrmawi direng the year
Tonsmaliey oy o { il ] = mei
Clising balance

eher Linhilsies

Entstrast ' mask-ufi payabile

Favahle 1 niall retsrement funds
(Hhees lisbilmes

Conlingencies aind O ommimenty

Decembstr 81, 1433

Pecember 31, 1021

Submldinry M_"""

e

Employees Employees .,

RS DhmechoenC

Egquity

Emplreegs.  Fmplovess

Participaibon  Benefd  Provident qaip Managemest . Participaison:  Bencfit  Provident
o "ersnnnel i Fund plans Trust ) Pernnnmz| - Fund plarm Trasa
(Ropers s ) (Kupaos =n HF)
A1A 48T - - . - - 55,447 = = . ¥
T RIE 45T A - 2 I e 1545 P E = =
134,709 . - - - - (38, M9 . & - =
L34, 68F il . = - . 144,767 7 K i 3
52517 6.1l = - . . 17,582 fiaTs = - .
144,048} {1,717y - . - S (47,540 (733 * - . .
IHI'E!B 4,715 - E x * | H &1 n.hzd - ¥ = =
(T 5708 . ; . - 0358 5769 : - :
- n = - w ] - - ] - llﬂ'q -
. : - 4,148 i . = : - 017 H -
P 5,187 16,575 10587 1441658 T . u T M 49IAM 196031 £.158
1T 159,445 17,464 A @TH 159647 4K NS 15,900 EENAL] 12 494 IT L14.B6% 53,047
- [184.297) (RN - (40405 40,580 - {44, 255) [, 280] - (ER AT (5127
[REZLY 1200 - i d : L155413 ! - - e e
i
- I_l._H-'l 1784 579,578 M IHE.‘_ 423 15,157 16373 SRAOT Al i
L]
H £ i 7138 (N B o . 1iE] Lz 6L g e 40
. - : . 453,768 < - . : ST5ATT i
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Dieerm e 31, 2022 December 31, 203 |
Key Yol Emplsyres  Employees 5 oy , gty Ermployesy  Employees
ﬁ.:::lrl : Mlanaprmrnd m[.[u Participation  henreflt  Provides ,:llllljlm Wlaragement D::':'L'..“' Marticpation besell Providen)
. Fund plans Tl g l'ersomnel ] Fissl filans Trust
Hupees in ‘0 Ripein i 1M1
Encamks
blar-up o retern ! infered ernld 12728 117 - - . - | 5, R et | . .
Fer and commussion incore . - - Lt | . - - B - 47 -
Expense
M._'E.u,pl return | intores] e pess " 1,564 135l LENE (Rl X P 4K 3 nEd | P I 7T L3
Feés amd ulher expenses = = - - a . ] 3 .
Remuiiation and allowances - R MR ] - - ) 1 . ai f3n a a .
Charge for the penod relating te ermphovees
Isenefit plans . - - - 13t . - - - - 117,007
Idescripdinn Iniercsl wide
Prircipal 1erms af loun failiy o SME] Rumming france ficility upio s 130 millien & roonika Kibor = 4.0%
Priocipal terms of depsil b Equny Pariogation Pund Ramnuireaiive deposits 14.50%
Proncipal ferms of degoain b Emploves Benefit Plans Rermunerative deposiis 10 00 ke B iR
Primipel beimes of diepesit g0 Employee Providen Trust Rormsinermive deposils 14, 75%%
Principal serss of depoast 10 Direcoors ACED Wesmnamive degosiis |4 0 o 15, 0%
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State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has granted exemption to the Bank vide letter No. BSDVSU-21/220¢1624/2007
dated June 08, 2007 from computing capital adequacy ratio under BASEL 11 6l restructuring/privatization
and has pgranted exemption from implementation of BASEL 111 Capital Instructions till
restructuring/privatization vide SBP letter # BPRIVBAXCPINV646/000886/16 dated January 12, 2016.
Accordingly, the Bank computes capital adequacy ratio under BASEL | and SBP has allowed exemption in
meeting the minimum CAR requirements of 10% till December 31, 2019 or completion of restructuring/
privatization of the Bank, whichever is carlier vide SBP letter No. BPRD/BA&CPDY646/332/20 dated
Tanuary 06, 2020. SME Bank has requested SBP (o allow further extension which is pending.

A
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40, CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The risk weighted assets 1o capital ratio, caleulated in accordance with the State Bank's guidelines on capital

adequacy is as follows:

Regulatory capital base

Tier | capital
Shareholders capital/assigned capital
Reserves
Unappropriated/unremitted profits (net of los

Less: Adjustments
Goodwill/intangible Asscts
Investment in equity of subsidiary

Deficit on revaluation of available for sale investmenis

Tortal Tier [ capital

Tier 11 capital
Eligible Tier 111 capital
Total regulatory capital {a)

Risk-weighted exposures
Ralance sheet items:
Cash and other liquid assets
Investments/ lending to fnancial institutions
Loans and advances
Fixed assets
Deferred tax asscls
Oiher assets

(T balance sheet items
Weighted non-funded exposures

Credit risk-weighted exposures

Muarket risk
Market risk-weighted exposures

Total risk-weighted exposures (<}

Capital adequacy ratio credit risk] (a) / (b) x 1040 ]

Total capital adequacy ratio | (a) f{e)x 100 ]

Page - 658
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2022 2021
(Rupees in "000)
2. 392 507 2,392 507
206,526 206,526
5¢5) (7,963,685)|| (6,846,330)
(5.364,652)  (4,247.297)
77 1.455
B0, 748 I
179 13,679
81,706 95,882
(5, 446.358) (4,343,179}
9 BE4
(5,446,329) {4,342,295)
il e
2022 2021
Sk et Risk adjusted o Risk adjusted
value value
{Rupees in "000) {Rupees in "000)
610,543 261 B27.681 547
4,135,290 33,548 4,237,715 b, 6T
1,329,573 811,546 [.596,181 959,171
381,089 380,310 425,695 424,240
1,165,061 1,165,061 1008, 206 1,008,206
496,712 265,501 512,849 266,213
8,018,268 2.656.227 B.60O8.327 2,724,544
208,638 104,319 281,430 140,715
208,638 104,319 281,430 140,715
by 8,226,906 I.'."E[l_.ﬂﬁ 8.880.757 2. B65.259
- 182,034 - 163,072
- 182,034 - 163,072
~ 2,942,580 ~ 3,028,331
-197.29% =13l .E_Ha'a
-IH,ﬂﬁafn T143.30%
e
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dl.

41.1

4111

41.1.2

RISK MANAGEMENT
Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter parties failed
completely to perform as contracted. The Bank is not exposed 1o major concentration of credit risk. Written procedures
for credit and risk management functions have been developed and implemented. Credit evaluation system comprise of
well destgned loan approval and review responsibilities and it is ensured that Bank's credit-granting activities conform
to the established strategy, prudential regulations and SBP mstructions are sirictly followed. To ensure that credit
granting activities are adequately diversified, besides fixing limits on individual eredit, it is ascerigined that there i= no
concentration in a particular industry or economic sector, geographical region and specific product. Special attention s
placed on such non-performing loans and a Special Assets Management Division follows up and recovers all such
loans.

Advances
Credit risk by indastry sector —
Non-performing
Gross Advances R Provision hebd
2022 2021 2022 2021 222 2021
{Rupees in "DO0)
Chemical and pharmaceuticals 116,341 119,104 100,204 101,623 96,521 w0016
Agriculture, forestry, hunting
and Tahing 205,420 235585 201,425 M 662 200 425 201,662
Mining & quarrving 9,053 9,053 0,053 Q.033 9053 453
Texdile 358,708 406,539 205,795 326,819 302987 324 487
Cemeni . - - - - .
Sugar . = ] . . -
Footwenr and leather garments 68,230 G2,000 56,930 39375 Sk, 465 0 246
Automobile and transportation
equipment 49,067 T0.881 ), 665 27453 18,162 12827
Finangial 204,757 208,553 - - - -
Insurance - - - - - -
Electronics and electrical
appliances 16,566 39,962 10,124 11477 10,126 10,512
Construction 149,361 ITITHM 0,141 77,951 68,372 67227
Power (electricity ). gas, waler
and sanitary 31316 42,070 16,391 28,302 14,132 15,380
Wholesale and trade 1.580.011 [, 723,175 1,368,133 |, 456,485 1,343,357 1,404 381
Trans storage, ond
.-_-r;::nﬁta[ign o 129,968 G, 140 19,943 14 943 13,722 11,222
Indviduals 1025143 1077356 983,792 [ 028314 93, TH2 1028 316
Services 361,557 3725010 242,670 284 444 215,368 266,542
Government - - - - - -
{thers 1,917,634 2OES 981 1,658,624 I, 7150158 1,55!1.319 1,701,548

6313434  GBIB6R1 5,063,892 5327918 4993831  S221619

Segment by sector

Public’ Government - . B! = -
Private 6323434 6818684 5063897 5317018 4993832  5221.619
Eu.m 6 518 684 5063552 5327018 4,993 833 52214615
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41.1.3 Contingencies and Commitmenis

Credit risk by Indusiry sector 2022 2021
(Hupees in "))

Chemical and pharmaceuticals i3 1,126
Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing 5 77
Mining & quarrving = -
Textile 17173 12,682
Ciement = 2
Sugar = =
Foorwear and leather garmenis = 10,0040
Automobile and transportation equipment 65,175 24,338
Financial 3.394,190 3,104,605
Insurance - -
Electionics and electrical applinnces . 5.003
Construction Te 487 331,229
Power (clectricity), gas, water and sanitary - 21,400
Wholesale gnd trade 12,892 l6,018
Exporis’ Imports - -
Transport, storage and communication - -
Ichividiais 64,920 HE 080
Rervices 7,504 48,043
Ciovernment 1,283,739 1,071,560
Others 78,250 161,431

4,998 438 4,825,507

Credit risk by pablic/private sector

Public/ Governmeni 1,283,754 1.071,560
Privame 3,714,699 3,754,057
4,908 438 4 B25.597

41.1.4 Conceniration of Advances

Itie bank top 10 exposures on the basis of total (funded and non-funded exposures) aggregated to Rs, 712,188
million (2021; Bs 836,541 million) are as following:

2022 2021
(Hupees in "HD}
Funded 500,974 550,809
Mon funded 211,214 285,732
Total exposure Ti1,188 B36,54 |

The sanctioned limits against these top 10 exposures aggregated o Bs 904325 million (2021 Rz 908,632 million)

Total funded elassified therein 2022 2021
Amouni hiild Amaount held
(Rupees in "D

OAEM - - - -
Substandard - - - -
Dioubiful = H z P
Loss - - - -
Tual - -
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41,15 Advances - Province/Region-wise Dlsbursement & Utilizatbon

41106

41.2

Province/region

Punjab

Sindh

KPK including FATA
Balkochistan

Istarmabad

AJK ineluding Gilgit-Baltistan
Total

Advanees - ProvinceRegion-wise Disbursenaent & Utilization

- ProvinceRegion

Punjab

Sindh

KPK including FATA
Balochistan

EHIELHL AN

AJK inchuding Gilgit-Baltisian
Toatal

SME Portfolio Charged aff

022
L tilization
AdK
KIPK
Dighursements i
Punjab | Sindh | including |Balochistan| Islamabad ".;:';'::t"
o Baliistan
{Hapees in 000}
174,120 174,120 - - F =
222, TN - 222,700 i A - -
54 0HH - - £4,000 - iz =
179,404 - - . 174,400 - .
133,000 131,000 - - - 2.0 ,
863220 405,120 222,700 54,000 17, A 2 MM} -
202
Litilizntson
AJE
. KFK : ;
Dish i ; ; .
D Punjah Sindh including | Balochistan| Islamnbad m;llll"::g
FATA ;
Baltistan |
{Rupses in (MK
427 550 427,550 - . = ; ;
176,750 . 276,750 . - - -
520} - - 2,000 -
133 400 5 . : 183,400 . .
207,100 131,400 - 50,200 - 25500 -
[, 16,800 358,930 276, T3l 02,200 1R3. 400 23,5 -

During the venr Bank has charged off 381 loan cases of SME portfolio In default for the last [0 vears & pbove extinguished
threugh provisions to clean the balance sheet, approved by Bold inats 116th meeting held on March 03, 2022, Charged off
these loans does et means cessation of the Bank's right o recover its money from borrowers through litigntion or eny other
way, As ot reporting dote outstanding amount of charged off porfolio was Principal Rs. 180489 million, Markup 143670
million and Others Rs. 29324 million.

Murket risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of on and off-balance sheet positions of the Bank will be adversely aifecied by movements
in ivterest rated, foreign exchange rates and equity prices resulting in o lods o enrnings and copitn], The Bank’s interest rates
exposure comprises those originating from investing and lending activities, The Asset and Liobility Committee of the: Bank
mamitors and manages the interest rate risk with the objective of limiting the potential adverse effect on the profitability of the

Bank.

A
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41.2,1 Balance sheet split by trading and banking books

Cash and bakances with treasury banks
Halances with oiher banks

Lendings 1o financial instihnions
Imvesiments

Advances

Fixed assets

Infangible nssels

Dieferred tax assets

Cither assets

41.2.2 Foreign exchange risk

1012 2021

Banking | Trading Banking Trading
Tatal book Nl Tatal

{Rupees in 000}

G092 N6 - 609,236 524,944 - &34, 944
1507 - 1.7 2,737 . 2737
114297 3510993 403520 146,915 4,090,800 4237713
1,329,573 - L2957 | 1,596,181 = | 505,180
IR0 310 E A0 424,240 - 424,240
79 2 e 1,455 1,45
165061 - 1065061 | 1008 206 - |00, 206
496,712 - 496,712 512849 - 512840
3097275 3010093 RBOI8.268 | 4517527 4,090,800 K,608,317

Presently the Bank does nof deal in foreign exchange.

41.2.3 Equity position risk

I'be Bank's exposure in equity market is classified in available for sale catepory with the intent 10 ¢am profit based on

fundameninls.

A
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Deposits and egker accounts RATEASE | 2 TI9356 G50 his 1300 567 | oeo adn 13,320 | 28000 b | 2AM6IT =
Sub-urdinmed loans - - - - : - - - - -
Lintiliiins agaimst nssets sabject -
o finance leass - - - - - - . - . -
Defermod tax liatnlities = s a - - - - . . .
{Hhew linhililion 147 J-Hi!l I!l_lﬂ:ll 7S 10,842 I ATH TR R4 53,402 W5 OkG oy 1T |
A3RA, 0% 4. TR URS 1 IAT R5T |16 807 DEEIH-E_ &2 57Ph T]-E!-lb- Th,THED 1550 RER 99 517
Mol avscis |M|t I'I.HIHSI llemlﬂilt HEEiI i Iﬂﬁ'&! 1,355 #94 | B5 133 a4 430 !,‘.,]}&_?ﬁi sl:l'i' -Hq_'l-t
Share capital LR
Heserees Jis, 516
Uneppropnisted Inas 7. 963,685
i Deficit p oo revaluaiion of msaeis (179}
LSRN

in comphance with the BSD cirulsr lener o, 03 of 2001 deted Febwwry 22, 2001, all assgts and Babilitses woth contrastusl maiuriies have been repociod 25 per thiesr remsining manungies,
anid witam mhiractan| matorites @re not wvnilable. such sseis and lotaimie have Be2n meponsd &2 per than expocial Feiliilics, délermmned om The beies ol bebanvioe simly of previous zix

viears hinnne data asder wolalilbty mwtihodology. Theso bases heve also been appeoved by the Assetand Liobility Communies | ALCO} of the Bank

44 Operational Kisk
Operanional rek 1 the nak of boss resulling from fnsdsquste or faiked imerns) p:ﬂmw'qhﬂnﬁmﬂ [eam exbernal Fvonts.

Opeviional nisky are mansged ihrough Bank-wide e ling of busitesd specdfle policses and procedam, controls aml manitering tools. Exampies of these inclale personnel mansgemen

prachices. data reconcihaimn processes, fmud momagsment enits. Smrescton processng mimmnnng ied solyees ond Busines cominuily planning
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Maturities of Assets and Linhilities - based on expected maturities uf the assets smil lshiligies of ihe Bank

Ml
Cwer 0 (her 3 Uver e | Ohvar 1 Cher 1 Oher 3
Uipts ] b 5 i 1o 1 i 1 L by § i [0 Abowve
Tarlal mesh imafiths s year years FENTS L] yEars 10 veurs
(Rupees m "004)
Assels
Cash and balances with Ireasiary banks £24.944 737 17243 = = = 1 . = TR FE] =
Pl with other bamks 2,737 2040 = s ] Ity - el 252
Lerxling bo ficanciol mstitutios = s = = = = z = s ;
Ienvesiments 4237708 | 95 564 1,632,351 KRS Jus 031 A LT - . BE91] .
Advances I.5945, 18] 531559 7090 MBS 342930 219740 | IRO4LD 13388 B AT] 3,140
Fixed assets 424, 244 4.54% a4 13281 28.6H 46,296 401,378 HE.023 156,122 55,19
Imtangibbe sscls 1,455 ™ (£ 3 112 415 543 . . = *]
Digferred tax asssis 10U, 20 - - - - 1,08, 21 . . = =
Clikser s SLLM B4,492 415 256 TIM 157005 . I3 T 331 849 F
608 327 1971263 2,760,659 &l 556 944,485 1L2E.007 320R11 199,643 30l 338 3K 480
Linhilities
iy payahle 19.071 18,519 - I 492 - - - - 1,044 -
Bermowimgs fom: fnancial issiihetions 3,206, 250 1,241,035 1,867,777 B9 12,055 6379 Jran 2850 - .
Ficposits and olher accoomis £ 24E3TI 277,310 B45.73) 1,104 Sk SI9.ATY 18203 K, Tl = 2971368 =
Sub-ordinated loans = = = s 5 - - - - .
L Eshilitics againgt aussts subject - -
1 Einance keass - - - - - - - -
Dreferred tax Habiluies - - - - - . - . - -
Ciher habifilies 1,3%5 4672 241 446 4.563 5 ik LRk 1 226 17 8% 19 4] BT, 1 TR &0 &S5
12,864 303 4,286,330 LTIRNT L 118 254 541,847 il AT 44, [l HTARE 3 R4 n0% 1 E,55%5
Ml assets ﬁEHHﬁ! F.] 14,07} -iﬁ_.i‘i!-ﬁ Hll._l'i-'ﬂ] 402 614 T,'.Ei_ﬁ ia E'.I'I!.!-I | 131653 (1481267 (132 193}
Hhare capital 3302507
Heseres J06 426
Urnsppropriaied loss {6,446, 330)
(Dhefiest) om revaluatinn of asscts {13.679)

EI.I&D..EI?'E-E

I corplinnee with the D50 circular better Mo 03 of 2001 daied Fobruary 22, I'I]II all assets and labalities with comirnchas]l mabarities have been reported s per iheir remaining masurizies, and
where comiracisal msurifics are nol avallalle, sisch nsseis and Habsligies hive hucnmp-um&upuulnrmpummum-luu deternined on the basis off behavior sudy of previmes six yesrs' historic
datn under valubilily methadobopy. These hases have alus oo appriovod by the Asiel sl Linbility Cosmisties (ALCO af (e Baslk.

-

Fage - 76




SME BANK LIMITED
Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended December 31, 2022

42. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Bank on hay

. 2023,
al A

@/3}/7 ¢ = Dreede
President / CED ﬂluiﬂCnanni;l O fficer Ditrecior /ﬁlmrmr Diirecior
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